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In accordance with,
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4{1) of the
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Registration of an overseas company opey

Regulanons 2009 UK establishment
>
&
A fee 1s payable with this form = *L2KHWLEG®
Please see "How to pay” on the last page LD3 05/11/2013 #36
COMPANIES HOUSE
J What this form is for % What this form is Ni *L2JLCMDL
You may use this form to register a You cannaot use this fc LD4 23/10/2013 #58
UK estabhshment the details of an existi COMPANIES HOUSE
officer or establishme - “TL2ioguiweT T T
LD4 10/10/2013 #84
COMPANIES HOUSE
Part 1 Overseas company details (Name) [ [T [ ™

Bl

Corporate name of overseas company

Corporate name®

HSBC Asia Holdings BV

Do you propose to carry on business in the UK under the corporate name as
incorporated in your home state or country, or under an alternative name?

+ To register using your corporate name, go to Section A3
+ To register using an alternative name, go to Section A2

3 Filbing in this form
Please complete in typescrpt (10pt
or above), or in bold black capitals

Al fields are mandatory unless
specified or indicated by *

O This must be the corporate name in
the home state or country n which
the company 15 incorporated

Alternative name of overseas company *

)

Please show the alternative name that the company will use to do business
in the UK

Alternative name
{f apphicable} ®

& A company may registeran =
altematne name under which it
proposes to camy on business in the
United Kingdom under Section 1048
of the Companies Act 2006 Once
registered 1t 1s treated as being its
corporate name for the purposes of
law in the UK

Overseas company name restrictions®

This section does not apply to a Furopean Economic Area (EEA) company
registening (ts carporate name

Please tick the box only if the proposed company name contains sensrtive or
restricted words or expressions that reguire you to seek comments of a

© Overseas company name
restrictions
A list of sensitive or restricted words
or expressions that require consent
can be found in gudance available
on our website

BIS

tnnoyation & Skills

government department or other specified hody www companieshouse gov uk
{1 1confirm that the proposed company name contains sensitive or restricted
words or expressions and that approval, where appropriate, has been
sought of a government department or other specified body and 1 attach a
capy of therr response
Department for Business CHFPOOO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 2

Overseas company details

Particulars previously delivered

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
another UK establishment @

2+ No Goto Section B2

+ Yes Please enter the registration number below and then go to Part 5
of the form Please note the onginal UK establishment particulars
must be filed up to date

LUK establishment
registration number

DUREEEEEE

@ The particulars are legal form,
identity of register, number in
registration, director and secretaries
details, whether the company 1
a credit or financial institution,
faw, governing law, accounting
requirements, objects, share capital,
constitution, and accounts

Credit or financial institution

s the company a aedit or financial institution? @

] Yes
No

8 Please tick one box

Company details

If the company Is registered in its country of incorporation, please enter the
details below

Legal form @ Besloten Vennootschap - Private Limited Liabiity Company
Countfy of |The Nethertands

incorpgration * |

Identity of register |Dutch Chamber of Commerce

in which it is

registered @

|
el e T AT T T

that register

@ Please state whether or not the
company is imited Please also
include whether the company 15
a private or public company if
applicable.

O This will be the registry where the
company 1s reqistered in 1ts parent

country

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outstde the EEA?

3 Yes Complete Sections B5 and B6
+ No Goto Section B6

Governing law and accounting requirements

Please give the law under which the company 1s incorporated

Governing law®

Dutch Company Law

Is the company required to prepare, audit and disclose accounting documents
under parent law?

+Yes Complete the details below
+No GotoPart3

©This means the relevant rules or
legisiation which regulates the
incorporation of companies in that
state

CHFPOGO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

From

To

Months

Please give the period for which the company 1s required to prepare accounts by

parent law
[o [
[ 2
Please give the peniod allowed for the preparation and pubhc disclosure of
accounts for the above accounting perod

o7

Latest disclosed accounts

Are copies of the latest disclosed accounts being sent with this form? Please
note If accounts have been disclosed, a copy must be sent with the form, and, if
applicable, with a certrfied transiation @

Yes
Please indicate what documents have been disclosed
[Q/ Please tick this box If you have enclosed a copy of the accounts

[] Please tick this box if you have enclosed a certified translation of the
accounts

[] Please tick this box If no accounts have been disclosed

@ Please tick the appropnate box{es)

CHFPOO0
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Regustration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 3

Constitution

c

Constitution of company

The following documents must be delivered with this application
- Certified copy of the company’s constitution and, if applicable, a certified
translation

Please tick the appropnate box(es} below
| have enclosed a certified copy of the company’s constitution @
(] 1enclose a certified translation, if applicable @

O A certified copy 1s defined as
a copy certified as correct and
authenticated by - the secretary or a
director of the company, permanent
representative, administrator,
adrministrative receiver, recever
manager, recesver and liquidatar

@ A certified translation into Enghsh
must be authenticated by the
secretary or a director of the
company, permanent representative,
administratar, administrative
TECEIver, receiver manager, receiver
and hquidator

EEA or non-EEA member state

Was the company formed outside the EEA?

+ Yes Goto Section C3
+ No Go to Part 4 ‘Officers of the company’

Constitutional documents

Are all of the following details in the copy of the constitutronal documents of the
company?
- Address of principal place of business or registered office in home country
of incorporation
- Objects of the Company
- Amount of 1ssued share capital
2 Yes  Go to Part 4 'Officers of the company’
4 No  If any of the above details are not included n the constitutional
documents, please enter them in Sectien C4
The information 1s not reguired if 1t 1s contained within the constitutional
documents accompanying this registration

Information not included in the constitutional documents

Please give the address of pnincipal place of business or registered office in the
country of incorporation ©

Building name/number

8

Street |Canada Square
Post town |Lon don
County/Region |
ook e [ [« [ [s[w]a]_
Country UK
Please give the objects of the company and the amount of 1ssued share capital
Objects of the
company® The participation In & financing of other legal entities, partnerships &

enterprises and carrying out of financial transactions

Amount of 1sswred
share capital @

1404 ordinary shares of €50, 22 541,104 preference shares of €1000

@ This address will appear on the
public record

@ Please give a brief description of the
company’s business

@ Please speafy the amount of shares
1ssued and the value

CHFPOOO
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Secretary

0S INO1

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Officers of the company

Have particulars about this company been previously delivered in respect of
another UK estabhishment?

2 Yes Please ensure you entered the registration number in Section B1
and then go to Part 5 of this form
3 No Complete the officer details

For a secretary who s an individual, go to Section D1, for a corporate secretary,
go to Section E1, for a director who 1s an individual, go to Section F1, or for a
corporate director, go to Section G1

Continuation pages

Please use a continuation page
iIf you need to enter more officer
details

Secretary details®

Use this section to list all the secretanes of the company
Please complete Sections D1-D3 For a corporate secretary, complete
Sections E1-ES Please use a continuation page if necessary

Full forename(s)

Surname

Former namef{s)®

@ Corporate details
Please use Secuons E1 ES to enter
corporate secretary details

Former name(s)

Please prowide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes during the penod of

this return Married women do

not need to give former names
unless previously used for business
purposes.

Secretary's service address®

Building namelnumber[

O 5ervice address
This 15 the address that will appear

Street I on the public record This does not
have to be your usuat residential
| address
Post town | If you provide your residential
atldress here 1t will appear on the
County/Region , public record
Postcode | | I 1 | |
Country
m Secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authonty as secretary Please tick one box ©1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty 1s hmited, please
Extent of authority provide a brief description of the
O Limited @ limited authority in the box below
O Unhmited ©1f you have indicated that you are

Description of hmsted
authonty, if appheable

Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

O Alone
O Jontly©

If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

not authonised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s} of
the persan(s} with whom you are
authonised to act below

CHFPOCO
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate secretary

Corporate secretary details®

Bl

Use this section to hst all the corporate secretanes of the company
Please complete Sections E1-E5 Please use a continuation page if necessary

Name of corporate

body or firm |

Buillding namefnumber |

Street |

Post town

|
|
County/Region |
Postcode [

[ Trriif

Country

O Registered or principal address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the public record This address
must be a physical location for the
delivery of documents It cannot be
a PO box number {unless contained
within a full address), DX number or
LP {Legal Post in Scotland} number

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

|s the corporate secretary registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

+ Yes Complete Section E3 enly
+ No Complete Section E4 only

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file s kept (including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register

Where the company/ |

firm 15 registered © I

Registration number |

OEEA
A fulf list of countres of the EEA can
be found in our guidance
www companieshouse govuk

© This 15 the register mentioned in
Article 3 of the First Company Law
Directive (68/151/EEC)

e |

Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by
which it 1s governed If applicable, please also give details of the register in winch
It 15 entered (including the state) and 1ts registration number in that register

Legal form of the

corporate bady
or firm

If applicable, where

the company/ffirm is
registered @

i applicable, the

Governing law |
registration number l

ONon-EEA
Where you have provided details of
the register (including state} where
the company or firm 1s registered,
you must alsa provide 1ts number In
that register

CHFPOOO
0512 Version 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

E Corporate secretary’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate secretary ©1f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one box of your authonity s hmsted, please
provide a brief description of the
Extent of authority O Umited © himited authority in the box below
8If you have indicated that you are
O Unlimited not authonsed to act alone but enly
[ontly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of imited the person{s} with whom you are
authonty’ If apphcable authorised to act below

| Are you authonsad to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

O Alone
3 Jontly@

If apphcable, namea(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are

acting jointly

CHFFO0O
05/12 Version 5 0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details ©

Use this section to hst all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5 Please
use a continuation page If necessary

Full forename(s)

|Bened:ct John Spurway

Surname

| Mathews

Former name(s)®

Country/State of United Kingdom

residence @

Nationalty 1 British

Date of birth 22 [ol2 [1fslel7
Business occupation l Company Secretary

(if any) @

O Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Marned women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This Is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

Director’s service address @

Building name/number |8

Street |Canada Square
|
Post town ILondon
County/Region
Postcode E ITIT FFFE |7
Country

United Kingdom

O5ervice address
This 1s the addrass that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual restdential
address

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
pubhc record

CHFPOO0
05/12 Version S 0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authonity
Please enter the extent of your authonity as director Please tick ane box ©If you have indicated that the extent
of your authonity is hmited, please
Extent of authonty provide a bref description of the
O Limited @ Iimited authority in the box below
Unhmited @ If you have indicated that you are
nat authorised to act alane but only
Description of limited jointly, please enter the name(s) of
authonty, iIf applicable the person(s) with whom you are
ty. 1t app Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Piease tick one box authonsed to act below
Alane
O lJontly®
If appheable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are |
acting jointly |
CHFPGOO
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009

Director

0S INOT - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details @

Please use this section to hst all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s}

IAIan Christopher Guy

Surname

|Stangroome

Former name(s)®

Country/State of
residence @ United Kingdom
Nationalrty British
d ] =
Date of birth ‘TI? IT[: Wl?l?l?
Business occupation
(f any) @ Icompany Director

© Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director detals

@Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes n the last 20 years
Marned women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This Is in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

©Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here if you do not,
please leave blank

Director’s service address®

Building name/number IB

Street |Canada Square
|
Post town lLondon
County/Region l
Postcode I?ITrrl——l—f)—[H—lgl_
Country |Umted Kingdom

© Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPOQOD
05/12 Version 50




0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

m Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box

Extent of authonty

O Limited @
Unlimited

Description of imited

authonty, if applicable

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

Alone
O Jontly®

If applicable, name(s) I

of person(s} with
whom you are |

acting jointly l

©If you have indicated that the extent
of your authority 15 imited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority in the box below

@ If you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person{s) with whom you are
authorised to act below

CHFPOOO
0512 Version 50




In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Companies
Regulations 2009

Director

OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details @

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s)

llaln James

Surname |Mackay
Former name(s)®
Country/State of
residence © United Kingdom
Nationality |Br|t|sh
d d m m 1
Date of birth | 1 IT |—_1-|—0_ |T1_|;9_F6—|T1‘
Business occupation | Lawyer

(if any) ©

@ Corporate detalls
Please vse Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details

@ Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for busmess
purposes In the last 20 years
Married women do not need to give
former names unless previousty used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This 15 1 respect of your usual
restdential address as stated in
Section F3

O Business occupation
If you have a business accupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

Director’s service address @

Building name/number |8

Street |Canada Square
|
Post town |Lond0n
County/Region |
Postcode | E |17|47|7|?|?|?|_
Country

United Kingdom

O Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residentral
address.

If you prowvide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPOOOD
05/12 Version 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonity as director Please tick one box

Extent of authonty

O Lmited @
Unlimited

Description of mited

authority, If applicable

©if you have nthcated that the extent
of your authority is limited, please
provide a bref description of the
limated authonty in the box below

®1f you have indicated that you are
not authorised to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
the person(s) with whom you are

Are you authorised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authorised to act below
Alone
O Jontdy @
If applicable, name(s) |
of person(s) with
whom you are |
acting jointly
CHFPOOO
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Companies Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Qverseas Companies
Regulations 2009

Director

0S INOT - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director details ©

Please use this section to hst all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forenama(s)

llam

Surname |Mack|nnon
Former name(s)®
Country/State of
residence © United Kingdom
Nationality 8British
d d m_o(m .
Date of birth I 0 l? |T|'3_ WIV—Q—EF
Business occupation | Accountant

(ifany) @

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details

@ Farmer name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Marmed women do not need to give
former names unless previously used
for business purposes

© Country/State of residence
This 15 in respect of your usual
residential address as stated in
Section F3

©OBusiness occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

Director's service address®

Building name/number IB

Street |Canada Square
|
Post town ||_ondon
County/Region |
Postcode I E |1_|4-I7r5_'H_|?l7
Country |Un|ted Kingdom

O Service address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the public record This does rot
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPOOO
05/12 Version 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director's authority
Please enter the extent of your authonty as director Please tick one box © If you have indicated that the extent
- of your authonty is hmited, please
Extent of authonty provide a brief description of the
O umited @ limited authonty in the box below
Unhmited © 1 you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Description of limited | |ointly, please enter the name(s) of
authonity, if applcable the person(s) with whom you are
| Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authonised to act below
Alone
O Jontlye
If applicable, name(s)
of parson{s) with
whom you are
acting jontly
CHFPOQO
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In accordance with
Section 1046 of the
Compares Act 2006 &
Regulation 4(1) of the
Overseas Compantes
Regulations 2003

0S INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Director

Director details ©

Please use this section to list all the directors of the company Please complete
Sections F1-F4 For a corporate director, complete Sections G1-G5

Full forename(s) [Rlchard John

Surname |Hennlty

Former name(s) @

;o:;xst;te of United Kingdom

Nationahty British

Date of birth SIT ﬂl-“‘s_ WEFF;
Business occupation | Lawyer

{if any) © |

@ Corporate details
Please use Sections G1-G5 to enter
corporate director details

O Former name(s)
Please provide any previous names
which have been used for business
purposes in the last 20 years
Marred women do not need to give
former names unless previousty used
for business purposes

© CountryiState of residence
This 15 in respect of your usual
residential address as stated i
Section F3

O Business occupation
If you have a business occupation,
please enter here If you do not,
please leave blank

Director's service address®

Building name/number IB

Street lCanada Square
|
Post town lLondon
County/Region
Postcode EF"TFFFEF—
Country United Kingdom

© Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address

if you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
public record

CHFPQOQ
05/12 Version 5 0




OS INO1 - continuation page

Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

I:I Director’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authonity as director Please tick one box @ |f you have indicated that the extent
of your authority 1s limited, please
Extent of authority provide a brief description of the
O Limited @ Limited authority in the box below
Unhimited ©1f you have indicated that you are
not authonsed to act alone but only
Description of imited jomntly, please enter the name(s) of
authority, if apphicable the person(s) with whom you are
.1t app l Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box authonised 1o act below
Alone
O Jonty ®
If applicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly
CHEPQOOD
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Regsstration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Corporate director

61

Corporate director details @

Use this section to list all the corporate directors of the company
Please complete G1-G5S Please use a continuation page If hecessary

Name of corporate
body or firm

Building name/number

Street

Post town

County/Region

Postcode

HEEEENE

Country

O Registered or prinapal address
This 15 the address that will appear
on the public record This address
must be a physical location for the
delwvery of documents It cannot be
a PO box number (unless contamed
within a full address), DX number or
LP {Legal Post in Scotland) number

Location of the registry of the corporate body or firm

Is the corporate director registered within the European Economic Area (EEA)?

» Yes Complete Section G3 only
+ No Complete Section G4 only

a3}

EEA companies @

Please give details of the register where the company file 1s kept {including the
relevant state) and the registration number in that register

Where the company/
firm 15 registered ©

Registration number

O EEA
A full hist of countnies of the EEA can
be found n our guidance
www companreshouse gov uk

©This 15 the register mentioned in
Article 3 of the First Company Law
Directive (68/151/EEC)

4

Non-EEA companies

Please give details of the legal form of the corporate body or firm and the law by
which it 1s govemed If applicable, please also give details of the register in which
it 1s entered {including the state) and its registration number in that register

Legal form of the
corporate body
or firm

Governing law

If applicable, where
the tompanyfim is
registered ©

]

If applicable, the
registration number

|

ONon-EEA
Where you have provided details of
the register (including state) where
the company or firm 15 registered,
you must also provide its number in
that register

CHFPOO0O
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Regustration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

G5 Corporate director’s authority
Please enter the extent of your authority as corporate directer @{f you have indicated that the extent
Please tick one hox of your authonty 1s limited, please
provide a bnef description of the
Extent of authonty O Lmited @ limited authonty in the box below
If
O Unlimited @|f you have indicated that you are

nat authonsed to act alone but only
jointly, please enter the name(s) of
Description of limited r the person(s) with whom you are
authonty, If appllcable authonised to act below

Are you authonsed to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

O Alone
O Jomtly®
If apphicable, name(s)
of person(s) with
whom you are
acting jointly

CHFPOOO
05/12 Version 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 5

UK establishment details

Documents previously delivered - constitution

Has the company previously registered a certified copy of the company's
constitution with matenal delivered in respect of another UK establishment?

+ No GotoSection H3
+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H2

UK establishment
registration number

s rrrrrT

2]

Documents previously delivered — accounting documents

Has the company previously delivered a copy of the company’s accounting
dotuments with matenal dehivered m respect of another UK establishment?

+ No Goto Section H3
+ Yes Please enter the UK establishment number below and then go to
Section H3

UK establishment
registration number

ST I

Sections H3 and H4 must be completed in all cases

UK establishment
registration number

Delivery of accounts and reports

Please state (f the company intends to comply with accounting requirements
with respect to this establishment or in respect of another UK establishment @

In respect of this establishment Please go to Section H4

0 Inrespect of another UK establishment Please give the registration number
below, then go to Section H4

DEREREEEE

@ Please tick the appropnate box

CHFPQOO
05/12 Version 50
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

M Particulars of UK establishment©

Please enter the name and address of the UK establishment O Address

This 15 the address that will appear

Name of establishment| HSBC Asia Holdings B V on the public record
Bullding namelnumber, 8
Street l Canada Square
Post town l London
County/Region I
Postcode IE F_F—I"S_F,?(_
Country l UK

Please give the date the establishment was opened and the business of the

establishment
Date establishment | 4 T (B % o "1 I's
Date Foofe f2leifs
Business carried on at I Hold
the UK establishment olding company

CHFPOOD

05/12 Version 5 0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 6

Permanent representative

Piease enter the name and adcdress of every person authonsed 1o represent the
company as a permanent representative of the company in respect of the UK
establishment

Permanent representative’s details

Please use this section to iist alt the permanent representatives of the company.
Please complete Sections J1-J4

Full forename(s}

BENEDICT JouN SPURW A

Surname

MATHE WS

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page If you
need to enter more details

B

Permanent representative’s service address ©

Buwilding name/number

g

Street CANADA SQUARE
Post town LOWN DO N

County/Region LONDO N

Postode e i [ [slrfal
Country

UNTED iNGhgM -

O Service address
This 1s the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residential
address

If you provide your residential
address here it will appear on the
pubhe record

Permanent representative’s authority

Please enter the extent of your authority as permanent representative
Please tick one box

Extent of authority

0O Lpted ®
Eﬁlmlted

Description of imited
authonty, «f apphcable

b

Are you authonised to act alone or jointly? Please tick one box

—t

E/Alone

O Jontly®

If apphcable, namels)
of person{s} with
whom you are

acting jointly

@1f you have indicated that the extent
of your authonty 1s imited, please
provide a brief description of the
limited authority 1n the box below

©|f you have indicated that you are
nat authorised to act alene but only
jointly, please enter the name{s} of
the person(s) with whom you are
authonised to act below
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Regustration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 7

Person authorised to accept service

Daes the company have any person(s) n the UK authonsed to accept service of
documents on behalf of the company in respect of its UK establishment?

+ Yes Please enter the name and service address of every person(s)
authonsed below
4 No Tick the box below then go to Part 8 ‘Signature’

[J 1 there 1s no such person, please tick this box

1)

Details of person authorised to accept service of documents
in the UK

Please use this section to hst all the persons’ authonised to accept service below
Please complete Sections K1-K2

full forenamel(s)

RENEDICT doriN StuRwi

Surname

MATHEW S

Continuation pages
Please use a continuation page If you
need to enter more details

Service address of person authorised to accept service @

Buillding name/mumber

3

Street CANADA SQUM{:
Post town {OND o )

County/Region VOT\FOW L _
Postcode 155 ’—[_I-q_l_—l S I t | G\‘
Country

UNLTED  KINGIOGM -

©Service address
This is the address that will appear
on the public record This does not
have to be your usual residenfial
address Please note, a DX address
would not be acceptable

CHFPOOOD
05/12 Version 5 0
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Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

Part 8 Signature

This must be completed by all companies

| am signing ths form on behalf of the company.
Signature Signature f

X

This form may be signed by
(@n Secretary, Permanent representative

CHFPO00
05/12 Version 50
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* Registration of an overseas company opening a UK establishment

B Presenter information

n Important information

You do not have to give any contact information, but (f
you do it will help Compantes House if there 15 a query
on the form The contact information you give will be
wvisible to searchers of the public record

Cnat™™  Hannah Shepherd
{empany name

HSBC Bank pic
Address.

8 Canada Square

Post town

London

County*Region
e[l [s[wlal

Posteode

Country UK
DX

Telephone

0207 991 8287

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or
with information mussing

Please make sure you have remembered the

following

O The overseas corporate name on the form matches
the constitutional documents exactly

O You have included a copy of the appropriate
comespondence In regard to sensitive words, if
appropriate

O You have included certified copies and certified
translations of the constitutional documents, if
appropnate

O You have included a copy of the latest disclosed
accounts and certified translations, if appropriate

O You have completed all of the company details n
Section B3 if the company has not registered an
existing establishment

O You have complete details for all company
secretaries and directors i Part 4 1if the company
has not registered an existing establishment

O3 Any addresses given must be a physical location
They cannot be a PO Box number {unless part
of a full service address), DX or LP {Legal Post in
Scotland} number

O You have completed detals for all permanent
representatives in Part 6 and persons authonsed to
accept service In Part 7

O You have signed the form

O You have enclosed the correct fee

Please note that all information on this form
will appear on the public record, apart from
information relating to usual residential
addresses

E How to pay

A fee of £20 is payable to Companies House in
respect of a registration of an overseas company.
Make cheques or postal orders payable to

‘Companies House’

E Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House
address, however for expediency we advise you to
return It to the appropriate address below

England and Wales:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House,
Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ

DX 33050 Cardiff

Scotland:

The Regustrar of Companies, Companies House,
Fourth floor, Edinburgh Quay 2,

139 Fountainbridge, Edinburgh, Scotland, EH3 9FF
DX ED235 Edinburgh 1

or LP - 4 Edinburgh 2 {Legal Post)

Northern Irefand

The Registrar of Companies, Compamies House,
Second Floor, The Linenhall, 32-38 Linenhall Street,
Belfast, Northern Irefand, BT2 8BG

DX 481 NR Belfast 1

Higher protection

If you are applying for, or have been granted, higher
protection, please post this whole form to the
different postal address below

The Registrar of Companies, PO Box 4082,

Cardiff, CF14 3WE

Further information

For further information, please see the guidance notes
on the website at www companieshouse gov uk
or email enqumes@companieshouse gov uk

This form is available in an
alternative format. Please visit the
forms page on the website at
www.companieshouse.gov.uk

This form has been provided free of charge by Comparres House

CHFPGO0
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ADVOCATEN - NCTARISSEN  BELASTINGADVISEURS

DOORLOPENDE TEKST

van de statuten van

HSBC ASIA HOLDINGS B.V.

na partiele statutenwyziging op 30 september
2013

Amsterdam
Brusse)
Lenden
Luxemburg
MNew York

Rotterdam

a NautaDutilh

CONTINUOUS TEXT
(unofficial translation)

of the articles of association of

HSBC ASIA HOLDINGS B.V.

after partial amendment to the articles of
association on 30 September 2013

Certified a frue copy
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DOORLOPENDE TEKST van de statuten van HSBC Asia Holdings B.V., statutair
gevestigd te Amsterdam, na partiele statutenwijziging by akie op 30 september 2013
verieden voor mr W H Bossenbroek, notars te Amsterdam

Handelsregister nummer 33296181

NAAM EN ZETEL
Artikel 1
1.1 De Vennootschap 15 genaamd HSBC Asia Holdings B.V
1.2 71 is gevestigd te Amsterdam
DOEL
Artikel 2
De Vennootschap heeft ten doel
a. het deelnemen i, het urtoefenen van de functie van directeur van, het

financieren van, het zich op andere wijze interesseren by en het voeren van —
behee:r over andere rechtspersonen, vennootschappen en ondernemingen,
alsmede het vernchten van administratieve diensten,
b. het aangaan van financigle transacties, waaronder onder meer begrepen het —
veistrekken of verkrijgen van lemingen, het geven van garanties, het stellen van
zekerheden of het zich op andere wijze sterk maken of zich hoofdelyk of
anderszins verbinden voor verphchtingen van Groepsmaatschappyjen of
derden, en
c. het verichten van al hetgeen met het vorenstaande mn de ruimste zin verband —
houdt of daartoe bevorderlyk kan zyn
AANDELEN - KAPITAAL
Artikel 3
3.1 Het kapitaal van de Vennootschap 1s verdeeld m
- gewone aandelen, elk nominaal groot viyftig euro (EUR 50);
- preferente aandelen A, elk nommaal groot éénduzend euro (EUR ——
1 000},
- preferente aandelen B, elk nommaal groot éénduizend euro (EUR ——-
1 0G0),
- preferente aandelen C, elk nominaal groot ééndwizend euro (EUR ———
1000),
preferente aandelen D, elk nominaal groot éénduizend euro (EUR —
1 000},
- preferente aandelen E, elk nominaal groot éénduizend euro (EUR ——
1 000),
b R Eaatr e paats s - preferente aandelen F, elk nommaal groot ééndizend euro (EUR ——

3 A 13 N -
¥ara et e osnsd
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1 000},

- preferente aandelen G, elk nomuinaal groot ééndwizend euro (EUR ~——
1 000);

- preferente aandelen H, elk nommaal groot éénduizend eurc (EUR ———
1 000Y;

- preferente aandelen I, elk nominaal groot éénduizend euro (EUR ———
1 ¢00), en

- preferente aandelen J, elk nommaal groot éénduizend euro (EUR ——
1 000)

Waar in deze statuten wordt verwezen naar aandelen of aandeelhouders, wordt
lmermee bedoeld aandelen, respectievelyk houders van aandelen, van alle
soorten tenzi) het tegendeel blykt
32 De aandelen zyn op naam gesteld en zyn per soort doorlopend genummerd van
1 af
3.3 Ten minste één aandeel wordt gehouden door een ander dan en anders dan ——
voor rekening van de Vennootschap of één van haar Dochiermaatschappyen —
AGIORESERVES

Artikel 4
4.1 De Vennootschap houdt voor 1edere soort aandeien een aparte agioreserve aan
4.2 Een beshut tot uitkering ten laste van een agioieserve die voor een bepaalde —

soort aandelen wordt aangehouden kan slechts worden genomen op voorstel —
van de vergadering van houde1s van die soort aandelen it voorstel dient te —
worden gedaan met algemene stemmen van laatstgenoemde vergadering
4.3 Een uitkering ten laste van een agioreserve die voor een bepaalde soort
aandelen wordt aangehouden, worden uitsluitend op die scott aandelen gedaan,
en wel naar evenredigheid van het op de aandelen van die soort gestorte bedrag
{gestort ago daaronder begrepen) maar met inachinemming van arttkel 4 4
4.4 Een witkering ten laste van een agioreserve zal worden gedaan in Britse pond —
sterling Het bedrag van een dergelyke uitkerimg op een aandeel wordt
omgerekend in Brtse pond sterling per de wisselkoers die gold op de dag van —
storting van het betreffende agio op dat aandeel
AANDELEN - REGISTER
Artikel 5
5.1 Het Bestuur houdt een register waann de namen en adressen van alle
Aandeelhouders, vruchtgebruikers en pandhouders zyn opgenomen
52 Aandeelhouders en anderen van wie gegevens 1n het register moeten worden —
opgenomen, verschaffen aan het Bestuur tyydig de nodige gegevens.
53 Alle kenmisgevingen aan en oproepingen van Vergadergerechtigden kunnen —
aan de n het register vermelde adressen worden gedaan
AANDELEN - UITGIFTE
Artikel 6

82038360 M 10155971/3
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6.1 De Vennootschap kan slechts ingevolge een besluit van de Algemene
Vergadering aandelen uitgeven
6.2 Artikel 6 1 1s van overeenkomshige toepassing op het verlenen van rechten tot —

het nemen van aandelen, maar 1s met van toepassing op het wmitgeven van
aandelen aan temand die een voordien reeds verkregen recht tot het nemen van
aandelen urtoefent
6.3 By de uitgifie van aandelen of het verlenen van rechten tot het nemen van
aandelen, heeft een Aandeelhouder slechts een voorkeursrecht met ben ekking -
tot de aandelen van de door hem gehouden soort(en), zulks naar evenredigheid
van het totale nominaal bedrag van zin aandelen van de betreffende soort —
AANDELEN - STORTING
Artikel 7
7.1 By) het nemen van een aandeel moet daarop het nominale bedrag worden ge- —
stort Bedongen kan worden dat het nominale bedrag of een deel daarvan eerst -
behoeft te worden gestort na verloop van een bepaalde tyd of nadat de
Vennootschap het zal hebben opgevraagd
7.2 Het Bestuur 1s zonder voorafgaande goedkeuring van de Algemene
Vergadering bevoegd tot het aangaan van rechtshandehingen betreffende
inbieng op aandelen anders dan n geld
AANDELEN - EIGEN AANDELEN
Artikel 8
8.1 Het Bestuur beshist over de verkryjging van aandelen 1 het kapitaal van de —
Vennootschap Verkryging door de Vennootschap van niet volgestorte

aandelen n haar kapitaal 1s metg
8.2 De Vennootschap mag, behalve om niet, geen volgestorte eigen aandelen
verkrygen indien het eigen vermogen, verminderd met de verkrygingsprys, —-
klemer 1s dan de reserves die krachtens de wet moeten worden aangehouden, —
of indien het Bestuur weet of 1edelijkerwiys behoort te voorzien dat de
Vennootschap na de verkryging met zal kunnen blyven voortgaan met het

betalen van haar opeisbare schulden
De verkrijgingsprys voor preferente aandelen, ongeacht de soort, kan nimmer —
groter zyyn dan het betreffende bedrag bedoeld 1n artikel 22 5
8.3 De vorige leden van dit artikel gelden met voor aandelen die de Vennootschap -
onder algemene titel verkrygt
AANDELEN - LEVERING
Artikel 9
9.1 Voor de witgifie en leverng van een aandeel of de levering van een beperkt —
recht daarop 1s vereist een daartoe bestemde ten oversiaan van een in
Nederland standplaats hebbende notaris verleden akte waarby de betrokkenen —

party zyn
9.2 De levering van een aandeel of de levering van een beperkt recht daarop over- -
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eenkomstig artikel 9 1 werkt mede van rechtswege tegenover de
Vennootschap Behoudens in het geval dat de Vennootschap zelf by de
rechtshandeling party) 1s, kunnen de aan het aandeel verbonden rechten eerst —
worden mtgeoefend nadat z1y de rechtshandeling heeft erkend, danwel de akte —
aan haar 1s betekend
9.3 Artikel 9 2 1s van overeenkomstige toepassing met betrekking tot de levering —
van een cerlificaat van een aandeg]
AANDELEN - OVERDRAAGBAARHEID
Artikel 10
De overdraagbaarheid van aandelen 1s met beperkt
AANDELEN - VRUCHTGEBRUIK, PANDRECHT EN CERTIFICATEN
Arnkel 11
11.1  De Aandeethouder heeft het stemrechi op de aandelen waarop sen

vruchigebruk of pandrecht 1s gevestigd

11.2  In afwiking van artikel 11 1 komt het stemrecht toe aan de vruchtgebruiker of -
de pandhouder indien zulks by de vestiging van het beperkt recht 1s bepaald of
dit nadien 1s overeengekomen, een en ander met inachineming van het
bepaalde in artikel 2 197 BW 1espectievelpk artike] 2 198 BW

11.3  Vruchtgebruikers en pandhouders die geen stemrecht hebben, hebben geen —
Vergaderrecht tenzy by de vestiging of overdracht van het vruchtgebruik
respectievelyk vestiging of overgang van het pandrecht anders 1s bepaald ——

11.4  Aan certificaten van aandelen 1s geen Vergaderrecht verbonden

BESTUUR - BENOEMING, SCHORSING EN ONTSLAG

Artikel 12

12.1  De Vennootschap wordt bestuurd door het Bestuur, bestaande uit twee of meer
Bestuurders De Bestuurders zijn ingedeeld 1n twee categorieen, Bestuurders A

en Bestuurders B
Bestuurders die hun hoofdverblyf buiten het Verenigd Konmnkryk hebben zyn -
ieder Bestuurder A Bestuurders die hun hoofdverblyf binnen het Verenigd —
Koninkryk hebben zyn 1eder Bestuurder B De meerderheid van de
Bestuurders dient Bestuurder A te zijn.
12.2  De Algemene Vergadering stelt met inachtneming van artikel 12 1 het aantal —
Bestuurders en het aantal Bestuurders van elke categone vast
12.3  De Algemene Vergadering benoemt de Bestuurders en 1s te allen tyde bevoegd
iedere Bestuurder te schorsen of te ontslaan
12.4  Ingeval van ontstentenis of belet van één of meer Bestuurders, 1s/zin de
overblyvende Bestuurder(s) voorlopig met het gehele bestuur belast Ingeval —
van ontstentenis of belet van alle Bestuurders of van de enige Bestuurder, be- —
rust het bestuur voorlopig by één of meer personen die hun hoofdverblyf ——
buiten het Veremigd Koninkrgk hebben, die daartoe door de Algemene
Vergadering wordt/worden aangewezen
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BESTUUR - BENOEMING, SCHORSING EN ONTSLAG

Artikel 13
13.1  De Vennootschap wordt bestuurd door het Bestuur, bestaande uit één of meer —
Bestuurders

132 De Algemene Vergadering stelt het aantal Bestuurders vast
133  De Algemene Vergadering benoemt de Bestuurders en 1s te allen tyde bevoegd
iedere Bestuurder te schorsen of te ontslaan
13.4  Ingeval van ontstentenis of belet van één of meer Bestuurders, 1s/zyn de
overbhyvende Bestuurder(s) voorlopig met het gehele bestuur belast Ingeval —
van ontstentems of belet van alle Bestumders of van de emige Bestourder, be- —

tust het bestuur voorlopig by één of meer personen die daartoe door de
Algemene Vergadering wordt/worden aangewezen
BESTUUR - TAAK, ORGANISATIE EN BESLUITVORMING
Artileel 14
14.1  Behoudens de beperkingen volgens deze statuten 1s het Bestuur belast met het -
besturen van de Vennootschap Bij de vervulling van hun tazk richten de
Bestuurders zich naar het belang van de Vennootschap en de met haar

verbonden onderneming
14.2  Het Bestuur zal een van de Bestuurders benoemen iot voorzitter van het
Bestuur Elke Bestuursvergadenng zal worden geleid door de voorzitter
Ingeval de voorzitter niet aanwezig 18, zal de betreffende Bestuursvergadering -
worden geleid door een ander Bestuurder die daartoe 15 aangewezen op de ——

Bestuursvergadermg
143  Bestuursbesluiten, ongeacht of deze beshutvorming binnen vergadering of op —
andere wijze plaatsvindt. worden genomen met Volstrekte Meerderheid Indien
de stemmen staken dan heeft de voorzitter doorslaggevende stem
Bestuursbesluiten kunnen ook buiten vergadering schriftelyk (of via
elektronische weg) worden genomen met een Volstrekte Meerderheid, indien —
alle Bestuurders bekend zijn met het te nemen besluit en zich met tegen deze —

wijze van besluitvorming verzetten
144  Een gelyktydige telefomsche verbinding of verbinding door andere commu- —
nicattemiddelen tot stand gebracht tussen een aantal Bestuurders, waar ter
wereld z1) ook zyn, wordt geacht een Bestuursvergadering te vormen, mits met

machtneming van het volgende

a. alie Bestuurders moeten een oproeping tot het bywonen van een
dergehjke Bestuursvergadering hebben ontvangen, de oproeping voor —
een dergelyke vergadering kan telefomsch worden gedaan,

b. iedere deelnemende Bestuurder moet 1edere andere deelnemende
Bestuurder kunnen horen gedurende de gehele Bestuursvergadering. —
behoudens het ierna bepaalde,

c. ten tyde van de vergadermg 1s de meerderheid van de deelnemende —
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Bestuurders fysiek aanwezig 1n het Veremgd Konmkrijk,

d. aan het begin van de vergadering moet 1edere deelnemende Bestuurder
Zyn aanwezighend bevestigen aan alle andere deelnemende
Bestuurders,

e tenzy hy daartoe voorafgaande goedkeuring van de voorzitter heeft —

gekregen, mag een deelnemende Bestuurder met de vergadering
verlaten door de telefoonverbinding te verbreken en hy zal geacht —
worden gedurende de gehele vergadering aanwezig te ziyn geweest, —
indien de telefoonverbinding van een Bestuurder per ongeluk ver-
broken wordt tiydens de vergadering, wordt de vergadering niettemin —
geacht rechtsgeldig te ziyn gehouden en het verhandelde wordt geacht —
even rechtsgeldig te zyn als ware de telefoonverbinding niet verbreken
geweest. en

f de door een Bestuurder die ter vergadering agnwezig 1s geweest
gewaarmerkte notulen van het verhandelde vormen daarvan voldoende
bewys, alsmede van het in acht nemen van alle noodzakelijke

formaliteiten
14.5  Een Bestuuider neemt niet deel aan de beraadslaging en beslurtvorming indien
hy daarbi; een direct of indirect persoonlyk belang heeft dat tegenstrydig 15 —
met het belang van de Vennootschap en de met haar verbonden onderneming -
Wanneer hierdoor geen bestuursbeshurt kan worden genomen, wordt
desalniettemin het besluit genomen door het Bestuur
14.6  Het Bestuur behoeft de goedkeuring van de Algemene Vergadering voor
zodanige bestuursbesluiten als de Algemene Vergadermg by haar specifiek —
omschreven besluit heeft vastgesteld en aan het Bestuur heeft medegedeeld —
14,7  Het ontbreken van de ingevolge artikel 14 6 vereiste goedkeuring tast de
vertegenwoordigingsbevoegdheid van het Bestuur of de Bestuurders niet aan -
14.8  Het Bestuur dient de aanwyzingen van de Algemene Vergadening op te volgen,
tenzij deze aanwyzingen 1n stryd zyn met het belang van de Vennootschap en -
de met haar verbonden onderneming
BESTUUR - VERTEGENWOQOORDIGING
Artikel 15
De Vennootschap wordt vertegenwoordigd door het Bestuur, alsmede door iedere
afzonderlyke Bestuurder
ALGEMENE VERGADERING - VERGADERORDE
Artikel 16
16.1 De Algemene Vergadering voorziet zelf in haar leiding
16.2  De Bestuurders hebben als zodanig in de Algemene Vergadering een
raadgevende stem
16.3  Het Bestuur kan beslurten dat iedere Vergadergerechtigde bevoegd 15 om in —
persoon of by een schriftelyk gevolmachtigde, door middel van een
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elektronisch commumicatiemiddel aan de Algemene Vergadering deel te
nemen, daarin het woord te voeren en voor zover van toepassing het stemrecht -

uit te oefenen
16.4 Door het Bestuur kunnen voorwaarden worden gesteld aan het gebruik van het
elekiromisch communicatiemiddel
ALGEMENE VERGADERING - BESLUITVORMING
Artikel 17
17.1  Inde Algemene Vergadering geeft 1eder gewoon aandeel recht op het
uitbrengen van één stem en ieder preferent aandeel, ongeacht de soort, op
twimtig stemmen
172  Het Bestuur kan besluiten dat stemmen die voorafgaand aan de Algemene
Vergadering via een elektromsch communicatiemiddel worden witgebracht, —
gehijk worden gesteld met stemmen die ten tyde van de vergadermg worden —
uitgebracht Deze stemmen worden niet eerder uitgebracht dan op de dertigste -

dag voor die van de vergadering
17.3  Voor zover by de wet geen grotere meerderheid 1s voorgeschreven worden alle
beslurten genomen met Volstrekte Meerderherd Ongeldige en blanco stemmen
worden niet als witgebrachte stemmen geteld
ALGEMENE VERGADERING - BESLUITVORMING BUITEN
VERGADERING
Artikel 18
18.1  Besluitvorming van Aandeelhouders kan op andere wijze dan m een
vergadering gesclueden, mits alle Vergadergerechtigden met deze wyze van —
beslutvorming hebben ingestemd Instemming met de wijze van
besluitvorming kan langs elektromsche weg plaatsvinden De stemmen worden
schriftelyk wtgebracht
18.2  De Bestuurders worden voorafgaand aan de beslutvormmg als bedoeld 1n
artikel 18 1 1n de gelegenheid gesteld om advies it te brengen
SOORTVERGADERINGEN
Artikel 19
Het bepaalde de artikelen 16 tot en met 19 1s zoveel mogelyk van overeenkomstige —-
toepassing op vergaderngen van houders van aandelen van een bepaalde soort
BOEKJAAR, JAARREKENING
Artikel 20
20.1  Het boekjaar van de Vennootschap 1s gelyk aan het kalenderjaar
20.2  Het Bestuur maakt jaarlyks bmnen vijf maanden na afloop van het boekjaar, —
behoudens verlenging van deze termyn met ten hoogste zes maanden door de —
Algemene Vergadering op grond van byjzondere omstandigheden, een
jaarrekenig op en legt het deze voor de Aandeelhouders ter mzage ten kantore
van de Vennootschap Indien de Vennootschap krachtens de wet verplicht 1s —
een jaarverslag op te stellen, legt het Bestuur binnen deze termyn ook het
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Jaarverslag ter inzage voor de Aandeelhouders De jaarrekening wordt on-
dertekend door alle Bestuurders, indien van één of meer hunner de
ondertekemng ontbreekt, dan wordt daarvan, onder opgave van de reden,
melding gemaakt op de jaarrekening
20.3 De Algemene Vergadering stelt de jaarrekening vast, tenzy vaststelling van de -
Jaarrekening geschiedt overeenkomstig het bepaalde in arnkel 20 4
20.4  Indien alle Aandeelhouders tevens Bestuurder van de Vennootschap zin, geldt
ondertekenng van de jaan ekening door alle Bestuurders tevens als vaststelling
van de jaarrekening, mits alle overige Vergadergerechtigden 1n de gelegenheid
zyn gesteld om kenmis te nemen van de opgemaakte jaarrekening en met deze —
wijze van vaststelling hebben ingestemd Deze vaststelling strekt tevens tot —
kwyting aan de Bestuurders
20.5 De Vennootschap gaat over tot openbaarmaking van de jaarrekening, tezamen -
met de overige relevante stukken en gegevens, voor Zover en op de wijze als —
wettelyjk voorgeschreven
UITKERING OP AANDELEN
Artikel 21
21.1  De Algemene Vergadering 1s bevoegd tot bestemming van de winst die door de
vaststelling van de jaarrekemng 15 bepaald en tot vaststelling van uitkermgen, —
voor zover het eigen vermogen groter 15 dan de reserves die krachtens de wet —

moeten worden aangehouden
21.2  Indien de Algemene Vergadering besluit tot uitkenng van winst wordt aan de —
houders van preferente aandelen, ongeacht de soort, allereerst uitbetaald het —
preferente dividend zoals omschreven in artikel 22 2 Hetgeen daama van de —
winst resteert, staat ter beschikking van de Algemene Vergadering, echter met -
dien verstande dat aan een houder van preferente aandelen, ongeacht de soort, -
nimmer meer kan worden mtgekeerd dan het betreffende preferente dividend, —
dit laatste echter tenzy) alle gewone aandelen door de Vennootschap zyn
ingekocht en daarcp geen vruchtgebruik rust
21.3  Een beshut dat strekt tot witkering heeft geen gevolgen zolang het Bestuur geen
goedkeuring heeft verleend. Het Bestuur weigert slechts de goedkeuring indien
het weet of redelijkerwys behoort te voorzien dat de Vennootschap na de
uitkering niet zal kunnen biyven voortgaan met het betalen van haar opeisbare -
schulden
21.4 By de berekening van 1edere witkering tellen de aandelen die de Vennootschap
in haar kapitaal houdt niet mede
21.5 By de berekening van het bedrag, dat op 1eder aandeel zal worden wigekeerd,
komt slechts het bedrag van de verplichte stortingen op het nominale bedrag —-
van de aandelen 10 aanmerking Van de vorige zin kan telkens met nstemming
van alle Aandeelhouders worden afgeweken
BIJZONDERE RECHTEN EN LASTEN VERBONDEN AAN PREFERENTE —
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AANDELEN
Artikel 22
22.1  Het n dit artikel bepaalde geldt voor houders van alle soorten preferente

aandelen
222 Het preferente dividend van houders van preferente aandelen, als bedoeld n —
artikel 21 2 wordt als volgt berekend
Het nominale bedrag van een preferent aandeel van gen soort wordt
omgerekend m Britse pond sterling per de wisselkoers die gold op de dag van —
uitgifte van dat aandee] Over het aldus verkregen bedrag in Britse pond
sterling wordt het preferente dividend op het betreffende aandeel berekend ——
door dat bedrag te vermemgvuldigen met een jaarlyks rentepercentage gelyk —
aan LIBOR verhoogd met twee procent (2%)
De Vennootschap mag geen preferent dividend uitkeren anders dan gelyktijdig
op alle geplaatste preferente aandelen van 1edere soort
22.3  Ingeval van ontbmding van de Vennootschap zin de houders van preferente —
aandelen van een soort gerechtigd tot een preferente witkering gelyk aan het —
equivalent in Britse pond sterling van (a) het totale nominale bedrag van de —
betreffende preferente aandelen vermeerderd met (b) het saldo van de
agloreserve verbonden met die preferente aandelen Het bedrag van een
dergelyke uitkerng per aandeel wordt omgerekend in Britse pond sterling per -
de wisselkoers die gold op de dag van uitgifte van dat aandeel, respectievelyk —
de dag van storting van het betreffende agio op dat aandeel
22.4  De n artikel 22 3 bedoelde bedragen 1n Britse pond sterling vormen de
preferente gerechtigdherd per preferent aandeel tot het hqundatiesaldo, en deze -
bedragen zyn (in totaal) tevens het maximale bedrag waartoe de houders van —
de betreffende soort preferente aandelen ingeval van ontbinding van de
Vennootschap gerechtigd zijn
22.5 Ingeval van mkoop door de Vennootschap van aile of een deel van de
geplaatste preferente aandelen van een soort, zal de prys per aandeel van die —
soort niet hoger zyn dan het maximale bedrag waartoe dat aandeel recht zou —
geven by ontbinding als bedoeld m artikel 22 4
ONTBINDING EN VEREFFENING
Artikel 23
23.1  Ingeval van ontbmding van de Vennootschap geschiedt de vereffening door het
Bestuur, tenzy de Algemene Vergadering anders beslnt
232 Van hetgeen na voldoening van alle schulden van de Vennootschap van haar —
vermogen overblyft, wordt allereerst aan de houders van alle soorten
preferente aandelen de bedragen witgekeerd bedoeld in artikel 22 4 Hetgeen —
daarna van het vermogen overblyft, wordt urtgekeerd aan de houders van
gewone aandelen naar evenredigheid van het gezamenlijk bedrag van hun
aandelen Op de preferente aandelen zal geen verdere uitkering plaats vinden —
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Op aandelen die de Vennootschap zelf houdt, kan geen vitkering aan de
Vennootschap zelf plaatshebben
23.3  Naafloop van de vereffening blijven de boeken en bescheiden van de ontbon- -
den Vennootschap gedurende de door de wet voorgeschreven termijn berusten -
onder degene die daartoe door de Algemene Vergadering by het beslutt tot ——
ontbinding 15 aangewezen Indien een aanwyzing als voormeld door de
Algemene Vergadermg met 1s geschied, geschiedt deze door de vereffenaren —

DE ONDERGETEKENDE

mr W H Bossenbroek, notans te Amsterdam,
verklaart hierby dat hy zich naar beste weten
ervan heeft overtuigd dat de statuten van
HSBC Asia Holdings B V , statutawr gevestigd
te Amsterdam, onmddellyk na partiele
statutenwuziging biy akte ap 30 september
2013, luidden overeenkomstig de hierveor
opgenomen tekst

Getekend te Amsterdam, op 30 september
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CONTINUOUS TEXT of the articles of association of HSBC Asia Holdings B.V., with corpoiate
seat m Amsterdam, after partial amendment to the articles of association, by deed executed before
W H Bossenbroek, civil law notary in Amsterdam. on 30 September 2013

Tiade Registry number 33296181
Ths 15 a translation nto English of the original Dutch text An attempt has been made to be as

literal as possible without jeopardizing the overall continunty Inevitably, diffetences may occur in
translation. and 1f so the Dutch text will by law govern

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Article 1

11 In these articles of association the following definitions shall apply

Sharcholder a holder of shares in the capital of the Company

General Meeting the body formed by Peisons with Meeting Rughts, o1 a
meeting of Persons with Meeting Rights

Management Board the management board of the Company

Managing Director a managmg director of the Company

Board Meeting any meeting of the Board of Management

DCC the Dutch Civil Code (Burgerlyk Wetboek)

Subsidiary a legal entity in whose general meeting the Company or
one or moie of its subsidiaries can, whether by virtue of
an agieement with other persons with voting rights or
otherwise and whether acting alone or together, exercise
mote than fifty percent (50%) of the votmg nghis, and
any other legal entities and partnerships that are
designated as such by the DCC

Group Company a legal entity or partnership with which the Company
forms an economic and organisational unit

LIBOR the rate quoted by HSBC Bank pic in the London
Interbank Stetling Deposit Market for six month British
pound sterhing deposits at or about cleven hundred hours
tn the morning (11 00 a in ) on the first business day of
the relevant financial year

Company the legal entity to which these articles of association
1elate

Person with Meeting a Shareholder, a Receipt Holder, a usufructuary

Rights (vruchtgebrurker) with voting rights and/or Meeting
Rights. or a pledgee with voting nghts and/or Meeting
Rights

Meeting Rights the nght to attend and address a General Meeting,
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whether 1n person or represented by the holder of a
wrilten proxy
Simple Majority more than haif of the votes cast

1.2 Terms that are defined in the singular shall have the corresponding meaning 1n the plural,

1.3 The term "wiitten” or "in wiitmg" shall also include the use of electronic means of
communication

NAME AND SEAT

Article 2

2.1 The name of the Company 1s HSBC Asia Holdings B.V.

2.2 It has 1ts coipotate seat at Amsterdam

OBJECTS

Article 3

The objects of the Company aic

a. o participate m, to act as director of, to finance or hold any other interest i, or to conduct
the management of, other legal entities. partnerships or enterprises, and to provide
administiative seivices,

b to carry out financial tansactions, including mfer alia to lend and boriow funds, to furnish
guarantees, provide secunity, warrant performance or in any other way assume liabihty,
whether jomntly and severally o1 otherwise, for o1 n respect of obligations of Group
Companies o1 other parties. and

c 1o do anythimg which, in the widest sense of the words, 15 connected with or may be
conducive to the attainment of these objects

SHARES - CAPITAL

Article 4

4.1 The share capital of the Company 1s divided nto
- ordinary shares, each having a nomnal value of fifty euro (EUR 50),

- peference shares class A, each having a nominal value of one thousand euro
(EUR 1,000},

- preference shares ¢lass B, each having a nominal value of one thousand emo
(EUR 1,000},

- prefeience shares class C, each having a nommnal value of one thousand euro
(EUR 1,000),

- preference shares class D, each having a nominal value of one thousand euro
(EUR 1,000),

- preference shaies class E, each having a nominal valoe of one thousand euro
(EUR 1,000),

- preference shares class F, each having a nominal value of one thousand euro
(EUR 1,000),

- preference shaies class G, each having 2 nominal value of one thousand euro
(EUR 1,000),

- preference shares class H, each having & nommal value of one thousand eulo
(EUR 1,000),

- preference shares class I, each having a nominal value of one thousand euro (EUR
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3
1,000). and
- preference shaies class J, cach having a nominal value of one thousand euro (EUR
1,000)

Where reference 1s made n these aiticles of association to shares or shareholders, this 1s
undeistood to mean shares and holders of shares of all classes, 1espectively, unless the
contrary 1s apparent

The shares shall be registered shares and shall be numbered consecutively per class,
starting fiom }

At least one share must be held by a party other than, and not on behalf of, the Company
o any of its Subsidianies

SHARE PREMIUM RESERVES

Article 5

5.1 The Company will keep a separate shaie premium 1eserve for each class of shares

52 A distiibunion from a share premum reserve wiich 1s kept for a specific class of shaies
can only be resolved upon on the basss of a proposal to that effect of the meeting of
holdets of shares of that class Such proposal must be made by unammous vote of the
latter meeting

53 A disti tbutron from a shate prermum reserve which 1s kept for a specific class of shares
can only be made on the shaies of that class, in proportion to the amount (including share
premmuim) pard on the shares of that class, but with due observance of article 5 4

5.4 A distribution from a share premium reserve shall be made in British pound sterling The

amount of any such distiibution on a share shall be converted mto British pound steiling
m accordance with the exchange 1ate prevailing on the date of payment of the relevant
share premium on that share

SHARES - REGISTER

Article 6

6.1 The Management Board shalf keep a register setting out the names and addresses of all
Shareholders, usufructuaries and pledgees

62 Shareholders and others whose particulars must be set out i the register shall piovide the
Management Board with the necessary particulars in a tumely manner

0.3 All notifications and notices convening meetings shall be sent to Persons with Meeting

Rughts at the addresses set out 1n the 1egistet

SHARES - ISSUE

Article 7

7.1 Shares may only be 1ssued by the Company pursuant to a resolution of the General
Meeting

72 Article 7 1 shall apply mutatis mutandis where rights to subscribe for shares are granted.
but shall not apply where shares are issued to a person exercising an existing right to
subsciibe for shares

7.3 A Shareholder shall only have a pre-emptive right with respect to an 1ssuance of shares or

granting of rights to subscribe for shares with respect to the class(es) of shares held by
him. 1n proportion to the total nommal amount of its shares of the refevant class

SHARES - PAYMENT
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Ariicle 8

8.1

8.2

The full nommal value of each share shall be paid up upon subscription for that share It
may be stipulated that all or part of the nemmal value need not be paid up until afier a
certain period of time or until the Company has called for payment

The Management Board may perform juristic acts (rechtshandelingen) i respect of non-
cash contributions for shares without the prior approval of the General Meeting

SHARES - OWN SHARES
Article 9

9.1

9.2

9.3

The acquisition by the Company of shares in its own caprtal shall be decided on by the
Management Board The acquisiton by the Company of shares in its own capital which
have not been fully paid up shall be null and void

Except where 1t acquires such shares for no consideration, the Company may not acquire
fully paid-up shares in its own capital if the shareholders' equity less the acquisition price
15 less than the reserves which must be maintained by law, or if the Management Board
knows ot should 1easonably foresee that, following the acquisition, the Company will be
unable to continue paying its due and payable debts

The acquisition p1ice for preference shares, n1espective of their class, may never exceed
the relevant amount referred to 1 article 23 5

The preceding provisions of this article shall not be applicable to shares acquired by the
Company by universal succession (onder algemene tuel)

SHARES - TRANSFER
Arfticle 10

10.1

10.2

10.3

The 155ue or transfer of a share or the creation of a hmited nght (beperit recht) n respect
of a share shall require a deed to that effect executed before a civil law notary practising m
the Netherlands and to which the persons involved are parties

The transfer of a share or the creation of a hmited right in respect thereof 1in accordance
with Article 10 1 shall also. by operation of law, have effect vis-a-vis the Company

Unless the Company itself 15 a party to the transaction, the rights attached to the relevant
shaie may not be exercised until the Company has acknowledged the bansaction or been
served with the deed

Article 10 2 shall apply mutatis mutandis m the event of the transfer of depositary receipts
for shares

SHARES - TRANSFERABILITY

Article 11

The transferabihity of shares shall not be subject to any restrictions
SHARES - USUFRUCT, PLEDGE AND DEPOSITARY RECEIPTS
Article 12

12.1

12,2

The voting rights attached to shares which are subject to a usufruct or pledge shall be
vested in the 1elevant Shareholder

Notwithstanding Article 12 1 and subject to what 1s provided in, respectively, Section

2 197 DCC and Section 2 198 DCC, a usufructuary or pledgee shall have voting rights if
this has been stipulated when the relevant limited right was created or 1f this has been
agieed at a subsequent time
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Usufructuaries and pledgees without voting rights shall not have Meeting Rights, unless
the contrary 1s stipulated upon the cieation or transfer of the relevant usufruct or,
respectively, the creation or transmission (overgang) of the relevant pledge

No Meeting Rights shall be attached to depositary receipts for shares

MANAGEMENT BOARD - APPOINTMENT, SUSPENSION AND REMOVAL
Article 13

13.1

13.2
13.3

13.4

The Company shall be managed by the Management Board consisting of one or more
Managing Duectors

The Geneial Meeting shall determine the number of Managing Directors

The General Meeting shall appoint the Managing Directors and may at any time suspend
or temove any Managing Director

Where one ot more Managing Directors are absent ot prevented from acting. the
remaining Managing Director(s) shall be provisionally charged with the entire
management of the Company Where all Managing Duectors, or the sole Managing
Duector, 1s/arc absent or prevented fiom acting, the management shall be provisionally
conducted by one or more persons who are designated for that purpose by the General
Meeting

MANAGEMENT BOARD - DUTIES, ORGANISATION AND DECISION MAKING
Article 14

14.1

14.2

14.3

144

The Management Board 15 charged with the management of the Company, subject to the
restrictions contamed 1 these artictes of association In performing thewr duties, Managing
Directors shall be guided by the mterests of the Company and of the enterprise connected
with 1t

The Management Boaid shall appoint one of the Managing Directors as chairman of the
Management Board Each Board Meeting shall be presided over by the chawman In the
event that the chairman 1s not present, the relevant Board Meeting shall be presided over
by any other Managing Dircctor, appomted for that purpose at the Board Meeting
Decistons of the Management Board shall be passed — urespective of whether this occurs
at a meetng or otherwise — by a Simple Majority 1f there 1s a tie in voting, the chasrman
shall have a casting vote

Resolutions of the Management Board may, mstead of at a meeting, also be passed
witting {or by electronic means) by a Simple Majorty, provided that all Managing
Directors are familiar with the resolution to be passed and do not object to this manner of
decision-making

The contemporaneous linking together by telephone or other communication equipment of
a number of the Managing Directors, wherever i the world they are, shall be deemed to
constrtute a Board Meeting, provided that the following provisions are observed

a. all Managing Directors must have received notice of such Board Meeting, notice
of any such meeting may be given by telephone,

b. each participating Managing Director must be able to hear each other participating
Managing Director during the entire Board Meetng. subject to the provisions
heieafier.

c. at the time of the meeting, the majorty of the participating Managing Directots
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are physically present 1n the United Kingdom;

d. at the commencement of the meeting, each participating Managing Director must
indicate his presence to all the other participating Managing Directors,
e unless he has obtained the prior consent of the chairman, a participating Managing

Director may not leave the meeting by disconnecting this telephone and shall be
presumed to have been present throughout the meeting, the meeting shall be
deemed to have been validly conducted notwithstanding that a Managing
Duector's telephone 1s accidentally disconnected during the meeting, and the
proceedmgs thereof shall be deemed to be as vahd as if the telephone had not been
disconnected, and

f. minutes of the proceedings shall be sufficient evidence thereof and of the
observance of all necessary formalities, 1If certified by a Managing Director who
was party to the pioceedings

A Managmg Director may not participate 1 the deliberations and deciston making of the

Management Board on a matter n relation to which he has a direct or indirect personal

mterest which confhicts with the interests of the Company and of the enterprise connected

with it Where all Managing Directors or the only Managing Director have/has such a

conflict of mteiest, the relevant decision shall nevertheless be taken by the Management

Boaid

The Management Board shall require the approval of the General Meeting for such

resolutions of the Management Boaid as the General Meeting shall have specified in a

resolution to that effect and notified to the Management Board.

Failure to obtain the approval required under article 14 6 shall not affect the powers of

representation of the Management Board or Managing Directors

The Management Board must follow the instructions of the General Meetimg, unless these

mstructions are contrary (o the imterests of the Company and the enterprise connected with

it

MANAGEMENT BOARD - REPRESENTATION

Article 15

The Management Board, as well as any Managing Director acting individually, may represent the

Company

GENERAL MEETINGS -~ CONVOCATION AND AGENDA

Article 16

16.1  During each financial year at least one General Meetmg must be held or at least one
resolution passed 1n accordance with Article 19 1 or Article 21.4

16,2  General Meetings shalt also be hetd whenever such a meeting 15 convened by the
Management Board or one or more Managing Directors

16.3  General Meetings must be held in the place wheie the Company has 115 corporate seat as
set out 1n these articles of association

16,4 A General Meeting must be convened by letters sent to Persons with Meeting Rights no
later than on the eighth day prior to the day of the meeting

16.5 Wheie the rules laid down by law or by these articles of association 1n relation to the place

where meetings should be held, the convening of meetings or the drawing up of agendas
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have not been complied with, legally vahid resolutions may still be passed provided that all
Persons with Meeting Rights have consented to the place of the meeting or to a decision
being made on the relevant matters, respectively, and provided that the Managng
Directors have been afforded the opportumity to give their advice prior to the decision-
making

GENERAL MEETING - PROCEDURAL RULES

Article 17

171  The Geneial Meeting shall appoint its own chairman

17.2  Managmg Duectors shall, m that capacity, have an advisory vote at Geneial Meetings

17.3  The Management Board may decide that each Person with Meeting Rights 15 entitled,
whether 1n person or represented by a person holding a written proxy, to participate n,
address and (where applicable) exercise his voting rights at the General Meeting by
electronic means of communication

17.4  The Management Board may impose conditions on the use of clectronic means of

communication

GENERAL MEETING - DECISION-MAKING
Article 18

18.1

18.2

18.3

Each oidinary share shall give the 11ght to cast one vote at General Meetings, and each
preference share, wrespective of 1ts class, shall give the right to cast twenty votes at
General Meetings

The Management Board may decide that votes cast before the General Meeting, but not
earlier than on the thirieth day before that of the meeting, by electronic means of
communication shall be equated with those cast at the time of the meeting

Unless a greater majority 1s required by law, all resolutions shall be passed by a Simple
Majonity Invahd and blank votes shall not be counted as votes cast

GENERAL MEETING - RESOLUTIONS WITHOUT HOLDING A MEETING

Article 19

19.1  Shareholders may pass resolutions without holding a meeting provided that all Persons
with Meeting Rights have consented to this manner of decision-making, which consent
may be given electronically The votes on such a resolution must be cast 1n writing

192  The Managing Directors must have been afforded the opportunity to give their advice
prior to the decision-makmg referred to in Article 191

CLASS MEETINGS

Article 20

The provisions of articles 16 through 19 apply mutatts mutand:s to meetings of holders of shares

n as much as possible
FINANCIAL YEAR, ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
Article 21

21.1
21.2

The financial year of the Company shall comcide with the calendar year

Each year. within five months after the end of the Company's financial year, unless this
persod 15 extended by a maximum of six months by the General Meeting on account of
special circumstances, the Management Board shall prepare annual accounts and deposit
them at the Company's office for inspection by the Shareholders If the Company 15
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required by law (o prepare an annual report, the Management Board shall, within the same
penod, also deposit the annual report for mspection by the Shareholders The annual
accounts shall be signed by all Managing Directors If one or more of their signatures 1s
missing, this fact and the reason therefor shall be stated

The annual accounts shall be adopted by the General Meeting unless they are adopted n
accordance with Article 21 4

if all Shareholders are also Managing Directors, the signing of the annual accounts by all
Managing Directors shall also constitute the adoption of the annual accounts, provided
that all other Persons with Meeting Rights have been given the opportunity to examine the
annua! accounts and have consented to this method of adoption Such adoption shall
constitute a discharge from habihity for Managing Directors

The Company shai] publish the annual accounts, together with all other relevant
documents and mformation, if and to the extent and in the manner required by law

DISTRIBUTIONS ON SHARES
Article 22

22.1

22.2

223

The profits as determined through the adoption of the annual accounts shall be at the
disposal of the General Meeting The General Meeting may decide to make a distribution,
to the extent that the shareholders' equity exceeds the reserves that must be mantained by
law

if the Geneial Meeting decides to disinibute profits, holdeis of preference shares,
niespective of theu class, shali first be paid the preferential dividend as described 1n
article 23 2 Any remaimming profits shall be at the disposal of the General Meeting,
provided that no distribution can be made to the holder of preference shares, irrespective
of thewr class, in excess of the relevant peferential dividend, unless, however, all ordinary
shates have been repurchased by the Company and no right of usofruct 1s vested thereon
A resolution to make a distribution shall not take effect as long as the Management Board
has not given its approval The Management Board may only withhold such approval 1f 1t
knows or should reasonably foresee that, followmg the dsinbution, the Company will be
unable to continue paying its due and payable debts

For the purposes of calculating any distribution, shares held by the Company 1n 1ts own
capital shall not be included

For the purposes of calculating the amount to be distributed on each share, only the
amount of the mandatory payments towards the nominal value of the shares shall be taken
mto account, The preceding sentence may be derogated from with the consent of all
Shareholders

SPECIAL RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS FOR HOLDERS OF PREFERENCE SHARES
Artcle 23

231
23.2

This article 15 applicable to holders of each class of preference shares

The preferential dividend for hoiders of preference shares referred to i article 22 2 shall
be computed as follows

The nomimal amount of a preference share of a class shall be converted into British pound
sterling in accordance with the exchange rate prevailing on the date of 1ssue of that share
The pteferential drvidend on the relevant share 15 calculated on the basis of that British
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pound sterling amount by applying to such amount a rate per centum per annum equal to
LIBOR plus two percent (2%)

The Company may not declare a preferential dividend other than simultaneously 1n respect
of all 1ssued preference shares of each class

In the event of dissolution of the Company, the holders of preference shares of each class
shali be entitled to recerve a preferential distribution equal to the equivalent in British
pound ste1 ling of (a) the total nominal amount of the relevant preference shares increased
by (b) the balance of the share premium reserve attached to such class of preference
shares The amount of any such distribution per share shall be converted into British
pound sterhing m accordance with the exchange rate prevatling on the date of 1ssue of that
share, or the date of payment of the relevant share premium on that share, respectively
The amounts specified 1n article 23 3 constitute the amount of the preferential claym per
preference share on the balance left after iquidation, and these amounts are (in aggregate)
also the maximum amount which the holders of preference shares of that class are enutled
to recerve 1n the event of the Company's dissolution

fn the event of the repurchase by the Company of all or part of the 1ssued preference
shares of a class, the purchase piice per shaie of such class shall not exceed the relevant
maximum amount to which the holder of such share would be entitled in the event of
dissolution as specified m article 23 4

DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION
Article 24

24.1

24.2

243

In the event of the Company being dissolved, the hiquidation shall be effected by the
Management Board unless the General Meeting decides otherwise

Any assets remaining after payment of all of the Company's debts shall first be apphied to
distribute to the holders of all classes of preference shares the amounts specified n article
23 4 Any 1emaining assets shall then be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares
m proportion to the aggregate nominal value of their shares No further distribution shall
be made on the preference shares No distribution may be made to the Company 1n respect
of shares held by 1t

After the liquidation has been completed, the books and records of the Company shall be
kept for the period prescribed by law by the person designated for that purpose n the
resolution of the General Meeting to dissolve the Company Where the General Meeting
has not designated such a person, the hquidators shall do so

THE UNDERSIGNED

W H Bossenbroek, civil law notary in Amsterdam, hereby
declares that the unofficial English translation of the
articles of association of HSBC Asia Holdings BV, with
corporate seat in Amsterdam. immediately after partial
amendment to the articles of association on 30 September
2013, read as per the text printed above

Signed at Amsterdam, on 2 October 2013

(Signed W H Bossenbroek)
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HSBC Asia Holdings BY. Amsterdam Annua Report for the year 2012

Management Report

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are the holding of investments in, and the financing of, subsidianes and
affihlated companies Consequently, nearly all transactons and balance sheet positions are with fellow group
members

It 1s not anticipated that the activities of the Company will change significantly during 2013

Overview of Activities

During the year, the Company received ordinary and preference dividends from The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Ltd ("HBAP") totalling USD 4,190,400k and USD 296,260k respectively

From HSBC Bank of Bermuda Ltd ordinary dividends amounting to USD 121,308k were received during the
year

In March 2012, the Company’s principal subsichary, The Hongkong and Shanghar Banking Corporatton Ltd
("HBAP™), redeemed one 1ssue of preference shares at a total face value of USD 250,000k Subsequently, the
Company subscrbed for further ordinary shares of HBAP amounting to the HKD equivalent of the above
amount

In March 2012, the company received a cash contribution of USD 33,702k from its shareholder (to be allocated
to the share premium account), with the direction that this cash amount would be utiised solely to fund a Special
Contribution 1o be made into the HSBC International Staff Retirement Scheme of the same amount, which was
subsequently paid to the scheme accordingly

In August 2012, the Company received USD 40k resulting from the hiqudation of Tawanpay Corporation, a
shareholding 1s had acquired onginally by virtue of its former ownership of Mondex Asia Pte Ltd

In May 2012, the Company 1ssued 1 ordinary share to its scle shareholder, in exchange for a cash consideraton
of USD 1,705,000k Subsequently, the Company subscrnibed for further ordinary shares of HBAP amounting to
the HKD equivalent of the above amount

In August 2012, the Company 1ssued 1 ordinary share to its sole shareholder, in exchange for a cash
consideration of USD 250,000k Subsequently, the Company subscribed for further ordinary shares of HBAP
amounting to the HKD equivalent of the above amount

In November 2012, the Company's principal subsidiary, The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd
("HBAP™), redeemed three 1ssues of preference shares at a total face value of USD 1,500,000k Subsequently,
the Company subscnbed for further ordinary shares of HBAP amounting to the HKD equivalent of the above
amount

In April, June and December 2012, the Company paid diwvdends to the sole shareholder totalling
USD 6,140,000k Of this amount, USD 766,361k was paid on the preference shares and USD 5,373,639k on the
ordinary shares

Results

The net asset value of the Company as at 31 December 2012 amounts to USD 59,538,102k
The result for the year 2012 amounts to a profit of USD 4,651,706k

Page 3 of 31
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HSBC Asta Holdings BV. Amsterdam Annual Report for the year 2012

Management Report

Business outlook

At the present time, it 1s not anticipated that the financial income and expenses of the Company will change
significantly dunng 2013

Risk management

The Company’s nsks are being monitored on a dally basis by the local executive members of the Company's
Management Board Should any issues anse then these are addressed and dealt with :/mmediately and duly
noted by the other members of the Management Board at the meetings of the Management Board, held at least
twice a year

The Company has no significant exposure to credit, market and hquidity nisk due to the nature of its business,
which 1s predominantly investing in or financing of group companies These transactions are generally being
funded by way of capital or debt also obtained from the parent or other group company

Directors

Detalls of the Directors of the Company are shown in note 12 of the financial statements

Mr J M van Kempen resigned dunng the year Ms N C E Cnockaert was dismissed as an Executive Director on
22 January 2013 and Mr H A Remmers was appointed as successor on 1 March 2013

This report and the financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 14 June 2013

Amsterdam, 14 June 2013

A

Willem J de Graaf
Managing Director

Page 4 of 3
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HSBC Asia Ho'dings BY, Amsterdam

Statement of financial position

after appropriation of profit

As at 31 December 2012

in thousands of US Dollars

Furniture and Equipment

Investments in subsidiaries and affillated companies

Investments in associates
Intra-group preference shares
Loans to group companies

Total non-current assets

Amounts due from group companies
Prepayments
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Issued capital
Capital exchange reserve
Share premium
Avallable for sale reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Employee benefits
Total non-current liabilities

Loans and borrowings from group companies

Other liabilities to group compantes
Other payables
Total current habilities

Total habilities

Total equity and liabilities

B W N -

Annual Report for the year 2012
2012 2011
18 15
50,624 107 46,971,642
65,185 42 667
8,598,363 6,813,030
10,000 10,000
59,297,673 53,837,354
175,553 164,218
15 23
234 37
49,499 1,521,006
225,301 1,685,284
£9,622,974 55,522,638
29,726,025 29,155,736
(7.043,225) (6,472,936)
20,272,679 18,283,978
(2,018,778) (5,554,111)
18,601,401 20,154,432
59,538,102 55,567,099
(214,698) {240,268)
{214,698} (240,268)
195,631 195,631
3,829 50
110 126
199,570 195,807
{15,128) (44,461)
59,522,974 55,522,638
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HSBC Asia Holdings BV. Amsterdam

Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2012

in thousands of US Dallars

Dividend income from group companies

Dividend income from associated companies

Dividend income on intra-group preference shares

Interest income from group companies

Financial ncome

interest expense to group companies
Impairment provisions
Expenses related to investments

Financial expenses

Net financing income

General & administrative expenses / income}
Foreign exchange gain, net

Net other operating iIncome / (expenses)

Profit before tax

Taxation charge

Profit for the year

Note

11

Annua Repaort for the year 2012
2012 2011
4,348,154 4531658
63,756 -
307,641 300,333
2,567 3,009
. 4,722118 4,835,000
- 5,585
52,495 -
6,856 2
59,351 5587
' 4,662,767 4,829,413
{4,349) (10,052)
8,800 598
4,451 (9,454)
4,667,218 4,819,959
t
i
I
15,512 1
! i
I
4,651,706 | 4819,958
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HSBC Asia Holdings BY, Amsterdam

Statement of other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2012

tn thousands of US Dollars Nofe

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive iIncome

Change In fair value of available for sate intra-group preference shares
Defined benefit plan actuanal (losses) / gains

Other comprehensive income for the pernod, net of iIncome tax

Total comprehensive income for the perrod

Attributable to,
Owners of the company

Total comprehensive ncome for the period

Annual Report for the vear 2012

2012 2011
4,651,706 4,819,958
3,535,333 (2,285,333)

(64,738) 327,472
3,470,595 (1,957,861)
8,122,301 2,862,097
8,122,301 2,862,097
8,122,301 2,862,097
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HSBC Asia Holdings BY, Amsterdam

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012

In thousands of US Dollars

Cash flows from operating activities

Dividends received from group and associated companies
Proceeds from ordinary share i1ssue (including share premium)
Proceeds from redemption of ntra-group preference shares

Dividends received on intra-group preference shares

Share premium contribufton made by shareholder
Interest receved

Management and administrative fees received
Liguidation proceeds investment

Dividends paid

Capital increase subsidiary

Special injection into ISRBS pension scheme
Investment related overseas expenses paid
Cash paid to supphers and employees
Incorporation subsidiary

Acquisition and related expenses paid

Net cash from operating activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Annua Report for the year 2012

2012 2011
4,373,880 4,531,658
1,955,000 438,000
1,750,000 550,000

296,260 311,020
33,702 -
2638 2,939
27 19
40 -
(6,140,000}  (3,345.000)
(3,705,000) (1,010,286}
(33,702) -
(3.149) -
(1,160} (963)
- (28)
- (2)
{(1,471,464) 1,477,359
(1.474,464) 1,477,359
1,621,006 43,632
(43) 15
49,499 1,521,006
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HSBC Asia Holdmgs BY. Amsterdam Annual Report for the year 2012

Notes to the financial statenients

Significant accounting policies

HSBC Asia Holdings BV (hereinafter “the Company™), incorporated in the Netherlands with imited hability, 15
domiciled mn the Netherlands and wholly owned by HSBC Asia Holdings (UK) Limited, incorporated in England
Its ultimate parent company 15 HSBC Holdings ple, also incorporated in England

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) in accordance with the EU approved IFRSs and its interpretations adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and in accordance with Book 2, Title 9 of the Dutch Cwil Code

The Company has adopted all new EU approved IFRS standards and interpretations that are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on 1 January 2012 These new standards and interpretations do not have a materal
impact on the accounting policies of the Company

{b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis and presented in thousands of US dollars,
unless otherwise indicated

All investments held by the Company are taken up within the consolidated financial statements of the ultmate
parent company Under the exemption provided by paragraph 10 of IAS 27, the Company does not prepare
consolidated financial statements and, in heu thereof, files with the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce
n Amsterdam the audited annual consolidated financial statements of its ultimate parent company, HSBC
Holdings plc

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and habilities,
ncome and expenses The esumates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the Judgements about carrying values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewisions to accounting
estmates are recognised in the penod In which the estimate 1s revised If the revision affects only that period. or
in the pencd of the revision and future penods if the revision affects both current and future periods

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the ‘direct’ method

Judgements, made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant nsk of matenal adjustment relate predominantly to the cost-base

valuation of the investments and the assessment of the need for impairment provisions

The accaunting policies set out below have been apphed consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements

Page 11 of 31



HSBC Asia Holdings BY. Amsterdam Annual Report for the year 2012

Notes to the financial statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Functional currency

(i) Statement of justification of use of functional currency

Following the critena as set out n IAS 21, the functional currency of the Company has been determined to be
US Dollar This 1s In lne with the Company's choice to use the US Dollar as functional currency for fiscal and
group reporting purposes

(d} Foreign currency

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactons in foreign currencies are translated into US Dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated to US Dollars using the exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences ansing on
translation are recognised in the ncome statement Non-monetary assets and liabilihes, which are measured at
historical cost In a fareign currency, are translated into US Dollars using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction

The year-end exchange rates used in the annual accounts are

% GBP1 =EUR 1.2256303 (2011 1 1969925}
% USD1=EUR 0.7582938 (2011 0 7731261)

(n) Share captal

In accordance with Book 2, Title § of the Dutch Civil Code, the EURO share capital of the Company has been
restated into US Dollars using the relating EUR/USD yearend closing rate The movements in exchange of the
share capital remain within equity and are captured in “Capital Exchange Reserve’, which 1s a legal reserve and,
as a result, non-distributable

{e) Fmancial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value In the normal course of business, the fair value of a
financial instrument on initial recognition 1s the transaction price (that 1s, the consideration paid or receved)
Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of financial instruments measured at fair value that are quoted in
active markets, are based on bid prices for assets held and offer prices for labilities 1ssued When independent
prices are not avalable, fair values are determined by using valuation techmques which refer to observable
market data These include compansons with similar instruments where market observable prices exist,
discounted cash flow analysis, option pncing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants Farr values of financial instruments may be determined in whole or in part, using valuation
techniques based on assumptions that are not supported by pnces from current market transactions or
chservable market data, where current prices or observable market data are not avallable Valuation technigues
incorporate assumptions that other market participants would use in ther valuations, including assumptions
about interest rate yield curves, exchange rates, volatiities and prepayment and default rates

Page 12 of 31



HSBC Asia Heldings BY, Amsterdam Annual Report for the year 2012

Notes to the financial statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Furniture and equipment

(i) Owned assets
Furniture and fixtures and computer equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation (see
below} and imparment losses

{i) Depreciation
Depreciation 15 charged to the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful ives of the
related assets The estimated useful lives are as follows

» furniture & equipment 10 years
» computer equipment 5 years

The residual value, if not insignificant, I1s reassessed annually

{g) Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates

Investments in subsidianes are held at cost less a provision for mpairment where necessary Dividend income 1s
recognised when dividends have been declared The sale and purchase of investments in subsidianes within the
group are accounted for at book value as these transactions are under common control

{h) Investments in associates

Associates are those entiies in which the company has significant influence, but no control Investments in
associates are measured at cost in these statutory financial statements Dividend income 1s recogmised when
dividends are declared Distnbutions received in excess of such dividends are recognised as a reduction of the
cost of investment

() [Intra-group preference shares

Intra-group preference shares are classified as avallable-for-sale and stated at far value The fawr value of the
intra-group preference shares are best estmates, using a modelling approach The main assumptons are the
early call feature on perpetual structures, credit spreads for similar matunty bonds 1ssued by the same entity and
quoted in the market, and with no distinction made between cumulative and non-cumulative preference shares

() Trade and other receivables
(i) Other assets and raceivables

Other assets and receivables are stated at their cost less mpairment losses where applicable (see accounting
policy h

Page 13 of 31



HSBC Asia Holdings BY, Amsterdam Annual Report for the year 2012

Notes to the financial statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and short term deposits due within one month

() Impairment

() Recognition of impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there 1s any indication of impairment If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated
(see accounting policy i)

An impairment loss 1s recognised when the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount Imparrment losses are recognised in the income statement

(n} Reversal of impatrment
An imparrment loss 1s reversed If there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount

An impairment loss I1s reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment toss had been
recognised

{m) Share capital

{1} Preference share capital

The preference share capital 1s classified as equity If it 1s non-redeemable and any dividends are discretionary,
or I1s redeemable but only at the Company's option Dividends on preference share capital classified as equity
are recognised as distributions within equity

{n) Repurchase of share capital

When share capital, recognised as equity, 15 repurchased, the amount of the consideration pad, including
directly attributable costs, 1s recogmised as a change in equity Repurchased shares are cancelled immediately
and presented as a deduction of share capital

(ni) Diwvidends
Dividends on ordinary and preference shares are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are
declared

(n} Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at far value less attributable transaction costs Subsequent to
imitial recognition, Interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost, with differences being recogmised in
the income statement over the peniod of the borrowings on an effective interest rate method
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HSBC Asia Holdings BV, Amsterdam Annua Report for the year 2012

Notes to the financial statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o) Employee benefits

(i) Defined benefit plans

The Company's net obligation in respect of the defined benefit penston plans I1s calculated separately for each
plan by estimatng the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for therr service in the
current and prior perods, that benefit 1s discounted to determine its present value, and the far value of any plan
assets 1s deducted The calculations are performed by a qualified actuary

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by
employees I1s recognised as an expense In the iIncome statement on a straight-line basis over the average pernod
until the benefits become vested To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense s recognised
mmediately in the Income statement

Actuarial gains and losses, Iin calculating the Company's obligation in respect of the plan, are recognised
immediately in equity via the Statement of Comprehensive income

{n) Defined contnbution plans

Whilst the Company 1s the official sponsor of certain defined contnbution plans, the obligations for contnbutions
to defined contnbution plans are not recognised as an expense in the Income statement as these are recognised
in the ncome statement of the ultimate employing entity of the individuals concerned

{p) Provisions

A provision i1s recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation If the effect 1s material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of money and, where appropnate, the
risks specific to the liability

{q) Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other amounts payable are stated at cost
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HSBC Asia Holdings BV. Amsterdam Annua Report for the year 2012

Notes to the financial statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

{r) Expenses

(1) Netfinancing costs

Net financing costs are calculated using the effective interest rate method and compnse dividends on
redeemable preference shares, interest recewvable on funds invested, dividend income and foreign exchange
gains and losses that are recognised in the income statement

Interest income 1s recognised in the income statement as it accrues, using the effective interest rate method
Dwvidend income 1s recognised In the income statement on the date the entity's night to receive payments Is
established

(1) Investment related expenses

Investment related expenses comprise expenses which do not qualify as acguisition costs and are therefore not
costs which are capitalised The expenses either represent expenses normally ievied on the shareholder directly
or expenses of which payment and absorption has been agreed by the Company

{s) Income tax

(1) Current tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax Income tax 1s recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recogrused directly in equity, in which case it 1s
recogmised In equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

{n) Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and habilties for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes The amount of deferred tax provided I1s based on the expected manner of realisaton or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabiliies, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date

A deferred tax asset 1s recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that the related tax henefit will be realised

{t) New standards

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2012, and have not been applied n preparing these financial statements The company
determined that the potential effects of these new standards are not matenal
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HSBC Asia Holdings BY, Amisterdam Annua Repaort for the year 2012

Notes to the financial statements

1. Investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies

The Company carnies its investments in subsidianes and affihated companies at historical cost less provision
for any impairment Dividends are recognised as and when declared

The Company has the following investments in group and affilated companies

Ownership (% of equity)
Nature of business Country 2012 2011

HSBC Bank Bermuda Ltd Banking Bermuda 100% 100%
Credwval Latinsul SA Dormant Uruguay 100% 100%
Dar Es Salaam Investment Bank Investment Banking Iraq 701% 70 1%
HSBC IM Pension Trust Ltd Trust company United Kingdom 100% 100%
HSBC LatAm Holdings (Netherlands) BV Dormant The Netherlands 100% 100%
HSBC Property (UK} Ltd Property Holding United Kingdom 100% 100%
HSBC Software Development {India) Private Ltd Software & support India 100% 100%
HSBC Software Development {Malayssa) Sdn Bhd Software & support Malaysta 100% 100%
The Hengkong and Shangha Banking Corporation Lid Banking Hong Kong SAR 100% 100%

This caption compnses investments in subsidianies and affiliated companies, the movements of which can be
analysed as follows

In thousands of US Doliars Cost of investment Provisions Total

Balance as at 1 January 2011 45,966,788 {5,458) 45,961,330
Additions 1,010,312 - 1,010,312
Disposals (5,458) 5,458 -
Balance as at 31 December 2011 46,971,642 - 46,971,642
Balance as at 1 January 2012 46,971,642 - 46,971,642
Additions 3,705,000 {52.535) 3,652,465
Cisposals - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2012 50,676,642 {52,535) 50,624,107

The addition to the cost of Investment represents further subscriptions for ordinary shares in the capital of The
Hongkong and Shanghat Banking Corporation Ltd

The addition to the provisions represents an imparment provision against the full cost of investment of Dar Es Salaam
investment Bank
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HSBC Asia Holdings BV, Amsterdam Annua Report for the year 2012
Notes to the financial statements
2. Investments in associates

The Company carries its investments in associates at historical cost less provision for any impairment
Dividends are taken into the results of the Company as and when declared

The Company has the following investments in associates

In thousands of US Dollars Cwmership (% of equity)
Nature of business Country e 2012 SN 2011

HSBC Saudi Arabia Ltd Investment Banking Saud Arabia 40 0%
SABB Takaful Company 4 Insurance Saudi Arabia 31 0%
Tawanpay Corporation - Tawan 2 9%

+ (a further 1 5% s owned indirectly)

The movements in the investments in associates can be analysed as follows

in thousands of US Dollars 2m
Balance as at 1 January 42 667
Additions -
Disposals -
Balance as at 31 December 42,667

The additions during the year represent the distnbution of the 2010 & 20122 profits of HSBC Saudi Arabia Ltd
and partial conversion into share capital New shares were issued to the Company in accordance with its pro-
rata shareholding, which therefore remained 49%
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HSBC Asia Holdings BV, Amsterdam

Notes to the financial statements

3. Intra-group preference shares

Arnual Report for the year 2012

Intra-group preference shares are deswgnated as avallable-for-sale and are measured at far value with
movements in far value taken to equity in the avallable-for-sale reserve

The Company holds the following preference shares of The Hongkong and Shanghat Banking Corporation
Limited, Hong Kong (*"HBAP"), as follows

In thousands of Nominal Dividend :\:::;?::3‘ Ret::;t:g:::r:ate 2012 2011
US Doltars Value basts date’ option)
Non-cumulative shares 900,000 LIBOR +185%  imedeemable Irredeemable 776,929 458,568
Non-cumulative shares 900,000 LIBOR + 1 85% rredegmable irredeemable 776.929 458 568
Non-cumulative shares 800,000 LIBOR + 1 85% wredeemable Irredeemable 776,929 458 568
Non-cumulative shares 978,000 LIBOR + 1 85% rredeemable irredeemable £844.263 498,310
Non-cumulative shares 375,000 LIBOR + 1 35% irredeemable rredeemable 286.534 168.338
Non-cumulative shares 500,000 LIBOR + 1 25% irredeemable iredeemable 176.929 218 388
Non-cumulative shares 1,000,000 LIBOR + 1 25% irredeemable Irredeemable 753,858 436,777
Non-cumulative shares 700 000 LIBOR + 1 30% irredeemable Irredeemable 534,082 309,987
Non-cumulative shares 250,000 LIBOR + 1 15% irredeemahble rredeemable 183,906 106,163
Neon-cumulative shares 150,000 LIBOR + 1 15% rredeemable imedeemable 110.344 63,698
Cumulative shares 200,000 LIBOR + 1 00% irredeemable iredeemahle 142.996 93,899
Cumulative shares 250,000 LIBOR + 1 15% irredegmable iredeemable 185,640 122,499
Cumulative shares 378 500 LIBOR + 1 25% iredeemable iredeemable 288.019 190,635
Cumulative shares 120,000 LIBOR + 1 25% rredeemable Irredeemable 91,314 60,439
Cumulative shares 56,500 LIBOR + 1 25% Imedeemable iredeemable 42,994 28,457
Cumulatwe shares 925 000 LIBOR + 1 15% imedeemable iredeemable 686,868 453,245
Cumulative shares 200,000 LIBOR + 1 20% rredeemable Iredeemable 150,351 99,365
Cumulative shares - LIBOR + 0 25% 29/03/2017 28/03/2012 - 190,960
Cumulative shares . LIBOR + ¢ 80% 28/09/2017 29/09/2012 - 169,484
Cumulative shares - LIBOR + 0 75% 2411012017 24/10/2012 - 505,820
Cumulative shares - LIBOR + 1 10% 24M1/2017 2471142012 - 351126
Cumulative shares 500,000 LIBOR + 1 00% 02/01/2019 02/01/2019 290,800 166,425
Cumulative shares 400,000 LIBOR +2 08% 29/03/2023 29/03/2018 333 656 305,770
Cumulative shares 1.050,000 LIBOR +3 23% 02/0172024 02/01/2019 962 021 897 541
Total 10,733,000 8,598,363 6,813,030

The preference share dividend 1s paid annually as long as the retained profits of the 1ssuer allows payment As
this has been the case in the past and 1s anticipated in the future, the preference dividend 1s being accrued for

The balance sheet caption ‘Amounts due from group companies’ includes accrued preference share dividends
receivable on intra-group preference shares of USD 175,488 (2011 USD 164,108)

! Redemption {other than at the issuer's opteon) will be subject to the approval of the ordinary shareholders of HBAP The earliest date for
redemption will be the referenced date and if not approved by the shareholders will next fall for review at 10 yeariy intervals thereafter
The ardinary shareholders of HBAP will convey in wnting to HBAP whether redemption of the preference shares has been approved no
less than 30 days prior to the date upon which redemption may occur

2 If iredeemable at any date or on or after the referenced date butin all cases subject to 30 days’ notice in wrniting to shareholders and to
the consent of the Hong Kong Monetary Authonty
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Notes to the financial statements

3. Intra-group preference shares (continued)

Fair value 1s determined according to the following hierarchy

Level 1 financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets

Level 2 financial instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using

models where all significant inputs are observable

Level 3 financial instruments valued using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are

unobservable

At 31 December 2012, the entire balance of Intra-group preference shares was valued using Leve/! 3 valuation

techniques

The movements In intra-group preference shares during the year were as follows

2012 2011
Balance as at 1 January 6,813,030 9,648,363
Additions -
Disposals (1,750,000} (550,000)
Change in fair value 3,535,333 (2,285,333)
Balance as at 31 December 8,598,363 6,813,030
4, Loans to group companies
in thousands of US Dollars Matuniy date 2012 2011
HSBC Finance Corporation, USA 2211212014 5,000 5,000
HSBC Finance Corporation, USA 28/09/2015 5,000 5,000
Balance as at 31 December 10,000 10,000

The loans carry interest at a percentage based on three-months’ LIBOR and a margin varying between
LIBOR plus 175 basis points and LIBOR plus 200 basts points  Interest 1s paid quarterly in arrears

5. Cash and cash equivalents

in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011

Short term deposits 49,205 1,520,810
Bank balances 292 194
Cash and cash equivalents 2 2
Cash and cash equivalents 49,499 1,521,006

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash, current and short time deposits accounts which are iImmediately

avallable at no addihonal break costs should the need arise

The short term deposit 1s due within one month and carres interest at 0 07%
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HSBC Asia Holdings BV, Amsterdam Annua Report for the year 2012

Notes to the financial statements

6. Capital and reserves (continued)

Preference shares classes A through G carry the following nights

« At Ilquidation or redemption, the shareholders are entitled to receive a preferential distribution equal to
the GBP equivalent of the nominal value converted into GBP at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of issue of the relevant shares (‘liquidation value™)

» Preference shares carry a share premium At liqudation or redemption the shareholders of these
preference shares are entitled to receive the balance of the share premium reserve attached to such
preference shares converted mto GBP at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of issue of the
relevant shares

e The liguidation value of these preference shares as at year-end is GBP 14,575 million
(2011 GBP 14,575 milion}

s |n case dividends are declared on the ordinary shares, the preference shares carry a preferential non-
cumulative dividend based on the liquidation value at a rate of LIBOR + 2%, where LIBOR 1s the rate
quoted for a 6-month GBP deposit on the first business day of the year

The holders of preference shares are entitled to a dividend on the preference shares with the maximum dividend
calculated above The holders of ordinary shares are entitted to receive dividends only when the Preference
dividend has been paid it full All ordinary and preference shares rank equally with regard to voting rights

Repurchase of Preference Shares
No preference share repurchases have been conducted during the year

Capital exchange reserve
The Capital Exchange Reserve 1s a legal reserve and therefore not distnbutable

Avallable for sale reserve
Based on legal requirements, the AFS reserve i1s not distributable until realised

Managing Capital

The Company has no specific objectives, policies or processes in place for managing capital and 1s not a
regulated company No additional requirements or levels have been imposed on the Company on this subject In
addition to the requirements as set out by Dutch Company Law

The level of capital and retained earnings maintained 1s subjective and dealt with on an ad-hoc basis and maimnly
driven by HSBC Group objectives and by the level,

(a) of (cash) funding required for the Company to be in a positon to fund the acquisition of its
investments (in subsidianes) or the subscription for preference shares (intra-group debt securities)
1ssued by (subsidiary) companies and,

(b) of excess cash, primarily avalable through the receipt of intra-group dividend income receipt, which
could then be used for,

() repurchase of (preference) shares,
(1) payment of dividends on preference and eventually ordinary shares

Some subsidianies are regulated companies and as a result have to maintain mimmum capital based on capital

adequacy requirements However, as the subsidianes are maintained at cost in the financial statements, the
company has no restriction on the use of its capital in excess of the cost of subsidiares
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Notes to the financial statements

7. Loans and borrowings from group companies
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and borrowings

in thousands of US Dollars Due Interest 2012 2011

Current liabilities
Loan from Credval Latinsul SA undated none 195,631 195,631
Balance as at 31 December 195,631 195,631

The interest-free loan 1s on demand and has been provided in anticipation and advance of the liqutdation of this
subsidiary The carrying value of the subsidiary in the books of the Company 1s materially equal to the amount of
the loan Once the iquidation process has been completed the loan will be repaid and the capital returned to the
Company Consequently, the cash effect of these transactions are expected to be neutral

8. Employee benefits

Liability for defined benefit obligations

The Company makes contnbutions to two defined benefit plans that provide pension benefits for employees
upon retirement By far the largest 1s the International Staff Retrement Benefits Scheme (*ISRBS”), a closed
plan resident in Jersey The second plan 1s a small iocal plan open to Dutch resident employees only and
deemed immatenal for disclosure purposes

During the year 2009, the Company became the official sponsor of the International Retirement Benefits Plan
{("IRBP"), a defined contribution plan As the obligations for contrbutions are recogmised by the ultimate
employing entity of the individuals concerned, the contributions to this plan are not recogrised In the accounts of
the Company

Movements in employee benefits

in thousands of US Dollar 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Present value of defined benefits obligations 1,229,854 1,063,544 1,144,383 1,124 856 763.285
Present value of plan assets 1.444 552 1,303,812 1,065,630 980,994 795,360
Present value of net obligations {214,698) (240,268} 78,733 143,862 {32.075)
Total employee henefits {214,698} {240,268) 78,733 143,862 {32,075)

Movements in the habihty for defined benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet

in thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Liabllity for defined benefit obligations at 1 January 1,063,544 1,144,363 1,124,856 763,285 1,242,799
Movements in exchange 48.393 (6,261) (48,020} 86,129 (358,708}
Employee contnbutions 1,247 1,593 1,711 1,997 2,289
Actual benefits payments made (55.864) {47,810} {44,605) (48,423) (58,424)
Expense recognised i the income statement (see befow) 69,239 85,201 81,394 69,728 92 264
Statement of Recognised Income and Expense (SORIE) 103,295 {113,542) 29,027 252,140 (156,935)
Liability for defined benefit obligations at 31 December 1,229,854 1,083,544 1,144,363 1,124,856 763,285

Page 23 of 31



HSBC Asia Holdings BY. Amsterdam

Notes to the financial statements

8. Employee benefits (continued)

Movements In the plan assets

in thousands of US Dollars

Fair value of plan assets at 1 January

Movements in exchange
Employee contributions

ISRBS employer contnbutions
Actual benefits payments made

Expected return on plan assets {see below)
Statement of Recognised Income and Expense (SORIE)

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December

Annua Report for the year 2012

Expense recognised in the income statement

In thousands of US Dollars

Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Categornes of plan assets

in thousands of US Doflars

Equities

Bonds

Property

Other

Total plan assets

Pension assumptions

Assumpfions as at 31 December

Inflation

Salary increases

Pension increases
Discount rate

Expected refurn on assets
Medical trend rate
Morialsty table — males

Mortahty table — females

) with core CMI 2011 improvements and a 1

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
1,303,812 1,085,630 980,994 795,360 1,053,133
57,197 {5.648) (41,864) 91,002 {298,840}
1.247 1,593 1,711 1,997 2,289
47,069 16.197 16,737 178,856 24,297
(55.864) {47 810) {44,605) (48,423) (58.424)
52,534 59,919 50,626 37,936 61,750
38,557 213,928 102,031 {75,734) 11,155
1,444,552 1,303,812 1,065,630 980,994 795,360
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
14,496 21922 21,110 17,266 26.911
54.743 63,279 60,284 52,462 65.353
(52,534) {59.919) (50.626) (37,936) (61.750)
16,705 25,282 30,768 31,792 30,514
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
91,871 - - - -
717,734 650,172 807,667 695,133 502,986
54,679 52,563 51,788 29,109 51,480
580,268 601,077 206.175 256,752 240 914
1,444,552 1,303,812 1,065,630 980,954 795,360
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
32% 34% 37% 37% 29%
175% 175% 5 45% 5 45% 4 65%
32% 34% 37% 37% 29%
4 4% 51% 5 4% 57% 6 5%
4 40% 393% 551% 551% 412%
n/a n/a n/a nfa nfa
65% S1PMA_L PNMACO YOB  PNMADOO YOB  PNMAOO YOB  PNMAQO YOB
75% S1PMA_L PNFAQO YOB PNFAQD YOB PNFAQD YOB PNFADD YOB

25% long term rate
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Notes to the financial statements

8. Employee benefits (continued)

Estimated contributions 1n next financial year

In thousands of US Dollars 2013 2012 2m

Estimated company contnbutions during the following year 11,785 14,646 17,176
Estimated employee contributions during the following year 1,199 1,475 1,737
Estimated total contributions during the following year 12,984 16,121 18,913

Estimated benefit payments in next financial year

in thousands of U8 Dollars 2013 2012 2011

Estimated benefits payments during the next financial year 61,802 57,310 54,967

9. General and administrative expenses

A breakdown of the general and administrative expenses is as follows

In thousands of US Dollars Note 2012 2011
Salanes and allowances 362 353
Compulsory social secunty contributions 36 35
Company staff - pension expense 143 120
International Staff (ISRBS) — pension expense 8 16,705 25,282
ISRBS reimbursements from group and associated companies 8 {13,367) (16,197)
Total personnel related expenses 3,879 9,593
Management fee recharges (28) 27)
Other administrative and office expenses 498 486
Total other administrative expenses 470 459
Total general & administrative expenses 4,349 10,052

Whereas the Company s the official employer and sponsor of the ISRBS, it 18 Group policy that all payments
made o the ISRBS and any other charges wmcurred by the Company in respect of ihe members will be
reimbursed to the Company by the Group and associated entities where the members of the ISRBS have been
seconded to

During the years 2007 to 2012, costs exceeded the recharges received from group and associated companies
These intra-year vartations are not unusual and caused by timing differences Ultimately, f Group policy Is
adhered to, there will have been no effective cost to the company on account of the International Staff
Retrement Benefits Scheme

Whilst the Company 1s the official sponsor of certain defined contribution plans, the obligations for contributions
to defined contribution plans are not recognised as an expense in the income statement as these are recognised
in the Income statement of the ultimate employing entity of the individuals concerned
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Notes to the financial statements

10. Operating leases

At the end of the reporting penod, the future minmum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows

In thousands of US Dollars 2012 2011

Less than one year 69 66

Between one and five years 217 110
286 176

The Company leases its office premises under operating leases, motorcars and office equipment

The office premises lease runs for a period of 5 years, with the option to renew the lease for a further 5 years at
that date Lease payments are increased every year based on changes in the local price index

11. Income tax

Taxation consist of the following

In thausands of US Dollars 2012 2011

Current year income tax - -
Prior year(s) Income tax - -

Overseas income tax paid {re Saudi Arabia) 14,158 -
Dividend withholding tax 1,354 1
Effective tax charge 15,512 1

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

in thousands of US Dollars 2012 201

Profit before tax 4 667,218 4. 819,959
Income tax using the domestic corporation tax rate 25% 25%
Statutory tax amount ' 1,166,805 1,204,990
Effects of difference In tax rates . (10} {10}
Participation exempton (1,185,431) (1,181,592)
Non-deductible items - ISRBS ' 4,176 2,118
Non-deductible expenses 14,848 2
Tax amount for the year . 378 25,508
Utilisation of prior year losses (378) (25,508)

Effective tax amount - .

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2012 the Company realised a fiscal profit for the year of approximately
USD 378k, whilst tax losses of approximately USD 70,9 millon were available from prior years None of these
losses carned forward will expire until 31/12/2016 Consequently no corporate imcome tax has been provided No
tax has been paid duning prior years consequently no tax asset s being recognised
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12. Fee of the auditor

Reference 1s made to Section 2 382a{1) of the Netherlands Civil Code, Audit fees are not disclosed as the
Company's financial information 1s included in the consolidated financial statements of another entity governed
by EU law

13. Directors

The Company has 7 directors (2011 8), one of whom received remuneration In that capacity dunng the year
{2011 1) The Board of Managing Directors 1s as follows

Ms V.W. de Alwis
Age 42, appointed an Executive Director in May 2005 and resident in Hong Kong

Mr W.J. de Graaf
Age 51, appointed an Executive Director In November 1997 and resident in The Netherlands

Ms S C Legg [Chawwoman]
Age 45, appointed an Executive Director in March 2011 and resident in Hong Kong

Mr ! F. MacKinnon
Age 55, appointed an Executive Director in October 2011 and resident in the United Kingdom

Mr R.A. van der Meer
Age 34, appointed an Executive Director in November 2011 and resident in the The Netherlands

Mr H.A. Remmers
Age 44, appointed an Executive Director in March 2013 and resident in The Netherlands

Mr A.C G Stangroome
Age 47, appointed an Executive Director in September 2010 and resident in the United Kingdom

The Company has no Supervisory Board of Directors

Based on the exemphion provided in Article 383, Section 1 of Part 9, Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code, no
directors’ remuneration has been disclosed

14. Related parties

Matenally, all transactions and balances are with related parties and are disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements
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Notes to the financial statements

15. Financial risk management

The Company’s nsks are being monitored on a daily basis by the local executive members of the Company's
Management Board Should there be any 1ssues ansing then these are addressed and deait with immediately
and duly noted by the other members of the Management Board at the meetings of the Management Board, held
at least twice a year

Foreign currency risk
The Company I1s exposed to foreign currency risk on assets and habilites that are denominated in a currency
other than the US Dollar The currencies giving nise to this nsk are primanly Pounds Sterling and Euro

The Company has not hedged the Pounds Sterling position largely ansing from the International Staff Retirement
Benefits Scheme (ISRBS) These balances are reviewed and potentially hedged at a Group level The Euro
foreign exchange exposure which anses on local assets and obligation such as suppliers, does not give nse to
significant currency nsk

Whilst the investments are stated at cost, the results and equity of the Company's principal subsiiary I1s
exposed to the volatility of the Hong Kong Dollar

In respect of other monetary assets and liabiltes held in currencies other than the US Doliars, the Company
ensures that the net exposure 1s kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances

Other financial nisks

The Company has no significant exposure to credit, market and iquidity nsk due to the nature of its business,

which I1s predominantly investing in or financing of group companies These transactions are generally being
funded by way of capital or debt also obtained from the parent or other group company

Amsterdam, 14 June 2013

Board of Directors
Ms VW de Alwis MrwWJ de Graaf
Ms S C Legg [Chairwoman)] Mr1 F MacKinnon Mr R A van der Meer
MrH A Remmers Mr A C G Stangroome
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Supplementary data
Subsequent events

None

Statutory rules as to appropriation of profits
According to Article 12 of the Company’s Articles of Association, profits are at the disposition of the General
Meeting of Shareholders

Proposed appropriation of result
Management proposes to carry forward within retained profits the result for the year ended 31 December 2012

Report of the Auditors
The Report of the Auditors is set forth on the following page
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Board of Directors of HSBC Asia Holdings B V

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanyng financial statements 2012 of HSBC Asia Holdmgs B V.
Amsterdam. which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012. the
statements of comprehensive income, changes n equity and cash flows for the year then ended
and notes, comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information

Management’s responsibility

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and farr presentation of these financial
statements 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Umion and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. and for the
preparation of the management board report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Netherlands Civil Code Furthermore, management 1s responsible for such mternal control as 1t
determines 1s necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’s responsibihty

Our responsibility 1s to express an opmion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit 1n accordance with Dutch law. including the Dutch Standards on Auditing
Ttns requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtaim
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materal
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1 the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those nsk assessments. the auditor
considers nternal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures that are appropriate i the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecuveness of the
Company s mternal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion

KPMG Accountar<s NV regrsiered with the irade reg-sier ; the Ne*her'ands
under number 33263583 18 a subsidiary of KM G Europa LLP avd & member fim
of the KPM G network of Independent menber firms a'filiated wrh KPMG
In*e-rational Cooperaive (KPMG ITemational} a Swss ently



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
HSBC Asia Holdings B V as at 31 December 2012 and of 1ts result and its cash flows for the
year then ended 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Umon and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirements under Section 2 393 sub 5 at ¢ and f of the Netherlands Civil
Code. we have no deficiencies to report as a result of our exarmnation whether the management
board report, to the extent we can assess, has been prepared n accordance with Part 9 of Book 2
of thus Code, and whether the mformation as required under Section 2392 sub 1 at b - h has
been annexed Further, we report that the management board report, to the extent we can assess.
1s consistent with the financial statements as required by Section 2 391 sub 4 of the Netherlands
Civil Code

Amstelveen. 14 June 2013

KPMG Accountants NV

CCJ Segers RA
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